
 

 

 
 
 

Council (Ordinary) 
 
 
 

Wednesday 14 December 2022 
3.00 pm 
(or at the conclusion of the Special Meeting of the Council, 
whichever should be the later) 

 
Council Chamber, Town Hall, 
Pinstone Street, Sheffield, S1 2HH 
 
The Press and Public are Welcome to Attend – Please see “PUBLIC 
ACCESS TO THE MEETING” below, for details of how to access the 
meeting, and the safety measures which apply 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

COUNCIL (Ordinary Meeting) 
 

Wednesday 14 December 2022, at 3.00 pm 
 

(or at the conclusion of the Special Meeting of the Council, whichever should be the later) 
 

 
MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL 

 
THE LORD MAYOR (Councillor Sioned-Mair Richards) 
THE DEPUTY LORD MAYOR (Councillor Colin Ross) 

 
1 Beauchief & Greenhill Ward 10 East Ecclesfield Ward 19 Nether Edge & Sharrow Ward 
 Simon Clement-Jones 

Richard Shaw 
Sophie Thornton 
 

 Vic Bowden 
Craig Gamble Pugh 
Alan Woodcock 
 

 Nighat Basharat 
Peter Garbutt 
Maroof Raouf 

2 Beighton Ward 11 Ecclesall Ward 20 Park & Arbourthorne Ward 
 Kurtis Crossland 

Bob McCann 
Ann Woolhouse 
 

 Roger Davison 
Barbara Masters 
Shaffaq Mohammed 
 

 Ben Miskell 
Nabeela Mowlana 
Sophie Wilson 

3 Birley Ward 12 Firth Park Ward 21 Richmond Ward 
 Denise Fox 

Bryan Lodge 
Karen McGowan 
 

 Fran Belbin 
Abdul Khayum 
Abtisam Mohamed 
 

 David Barker 
Mike Drabble 
Dianne Hurst 
 

4 Broomhill & Sharrow Vale Ward 13 Fulwood Ward 22 Shiregreen & Brightside Ward 
 Angela Argenzio 

Maleiki Haybe 
Brian Holmshaw 

 Sue Alston 
Andrew Sangar 
Cliff Woodcraft 
 

 Dawn Dale 
Peter Price 
Garry Weatherall 
 

5 Burngreave Ward 14 Gleadless Valley Ward 23 Southey Ward 
 Talib Hussain 

Mark Jones 
Safiya Saeed 
 

 Alexi Dimond 
Marieanne Elliot 
Paul Turpin 
 

 Mike Chaplin 
Tony Damms 
Jayne Dunn 
 

6 City Ward 15 Graves Park Ward 24 Stannington Ward 
 Douglas Johnson 

Ruth Mersereau 
Martin Phipps 

 Ian Auckland 
Sue Auckland 
Steve Ayris 
 

 Penny Baker 
Vickie Priestley 
Richard Williams 
 

7 Crookes & Crosspool Ward 16 Hillsborough Ward 25 Stocksbridge & Upper Don Ward 
 Tim Huggan 

Ruth Milsom 
Minesh Parekh 

 Christine Gilligan Kubo 
George Lindars-Hammond 
Henry Nottage 
 

 Lewis Chinchen 
Julie Grocutt 
Janet Ridler 
 

8 Darnall Ward 17 Manor Castle Ward 26 Walkley Ward 
 Mazher Iqbal 

Mary Lea 
Zahira Naz 
 

 Terry Fox 
Anne Murphy 
Sioned-Mair Richards 
 

 Ben Curran 
Tom Hunt 
Bernard Little 
 

9 Dore & Totley Ward 18 Mosborough Ward 27 West Ecclesfield Ward 
 Joe Otten 

Colin Ross 
Martin Smith 
 

 Tony Downing 
Kevin Oxley 
Gail Smith 
 

 Alan Hooper 
Mike Levery 
Ann Whitaker 
 

    28 Woodhouse Ward 
     Mick Rooney 

Jackie Satur 
Paul Wood 
 

 



 

 

 
Contact: Paul Robinson, Democratic Services 
 Tel: 0114 2734029 
 paul.robinson@sheffield.gov.uk 
 

PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE MEETING 
 
The Council is composed of 84 Councillors with one-third elected three years in four. 
Councillors are democratically accountable to the residents of their Ward. The 
overriding duty of Councillors is to the whole community, but they have a special 
duty to their constituents, including those who did not vote for them. 
 
All Councillors meet together as the Council. Here Councillors decide the Council’s 
overall policies and set the budget each year. The Council appoints the Leader and 
at its Annual Meeting will appoint Councillors to serve on its Committees.  It also 
appoints representatives to serve on joint bodies and external organisations.   
 
A copy of the agenda and reports is available on the Council’s website at 
http://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=154.  You may 
not be allowed to see some reports because they contain confidential information.  
These items are usually marked * on the agenda.  
 
Members of the public have the right to ask questions or submit petitions to most 
Council meetings and recording is allowed under the direction of the Chair.  Please 
see the website or contact Democratic Services for further information regarding 
public questions and petitions and details of the Council’s protocol on audio/visual 
recording and photography at council meetings. 
 
Council meetings are normally open to the public but sometimes the Council may 
have to discuss an item in private.  If this happens, you will be asked to leave.  Any 
private items are normally left until last. 
 
Meetings of the Council have to be held as physical meetings. If you would like to 
attend the meeting, please report to an Attendant in the Foyer at the Town Hall 
where you will be directed to the meeting room.  However, it would be appreciated if 
you could register to attend, in advance of the meeting, by emailing 
committee@sheffield.gov.uk, as this will assist with the management of attendance 
at the meeting. 
 
Please do not attend the meeting if you have COVID-19 symptoms. It is also 
recommended that you undertake a Covid-19 Rapid Lateral Flow Test within two 
days of the meeting.  To aid safe access and protect all attendees, you are welcome 
to wear a face covering within the venue. 
 
PLEASE NOTE: The Public Gallery in the Town Hall Council Chamber can 
accommodate 50 persons.  Social distancing may not be possible in the Gallery 
depending on the numbers of members of the public in attendance at the meeting.  
An overspill area will be provided in the event that more than 50 members of the 
public attend - the webcast of the meeting will be live streamed to that room. 

mailto:paul.robinson@sheffield.gov.uk
http://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=154
mailto:committee@sheffield.gov.uk


 

 

We are unable to guarantee entrance to the Public Gallery for observers, as priority 
will be given to registered speakers and those that have registered to attend.  
 
Alternatively, you can observe the meeting remotely by clicking on the ‘view the 
webcast’ link provided on the meeting page of the website. 
 
 

FACILITIES 
 
There are public toilets available, with wheelchair access, on the ground floor of the 
Town Hall.  Induction loop facilities are available in meeting rooms. 
 
Access for people with mobility difficulties can be obtained through the ramp on the 
side to the main Town Hall entrance. 
 

https://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=154


 

 

 
COUNCIL AGENDA 

14 DECEMBER 2022 (3PM) 
Order of Business 

  
1.   
 

WELCOME AND HOUSEKEEPING ANNOUNCEMENTS 
  

2.   
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
  

3.   
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 Members to declare any interests they have in the business to be 
considered at the meeting. 
 
  

4.   
 

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS AND OTHER 
COMMUNICATIONS 
 

 To receive any questions or petitions from the public, or communications 
submitted by the Lord Mayor or the Chief Executive and to pass such 
resolutions thereon as the Council Procedure Rules permit and as may be 
deemed expedient. 
  
  
(NOTE: There is a time limit of one hour for the above item of business.  In 
accordance with the arrangements published on the Council’s website, 
questions/petitions are required to be submitted in writing, to 
committee@sheffield.gov.uk, by 9.00 a.m. on Monday 12th December. 
Questions/petitions submitted after the deadline will be asked at the 
meeting subject to the discretion of the Chair.) 
  
  
  

5.   
 

MEMBERS' QUESTIONS 
 

 5.1      Questions relating to urgent business – Council Procedure Rule 
16.6(ii). 

  
5.2      Questions relating to the discharge of the functions of the South 

Yorkshire Joint Authorities (under the provisions of Section 41 of 
the Local Government Act 1985) and of the South Yorkshire 
Mayoral Combined Authority – Council Procedure Rule 16.6(i). 

  
5.3      Supplementary questions on written questions submitted at this 

meeting – Council Procedure Rule 16.4. 
  
  
 
  

mailto:committee@sheffield.gov.uk


 

 

6.   
 

ENDORSEMENT OF THE PUBLICATION DRAFT SHEFFIELD LOCAL 
PLAN ('THE DRAFT SHEFFIELD PLAN') 
 

 To approve, with or without amendment, the recommendations in the 
report of the Executive Director, City Futures, published with this agenda, 
seeking approval to consult on Sheffield’s Publication Draft Local Plan 
(‘The Sheffield Plan’). 
   
  

7.   
 

NOTICE OF MOTION REGARDING "NO MORE EXCUSES ON 
HOUSING REPAIRS" - GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR RICHARD SHAW 
AND TO BE SECONDED BY COUNCILLOR SOPHIE THORNTON 
 

 That this Council:- 
  

(a)     notes with great sadness the death of Awaab Ishak in Rochdale, 
which was found by the Coroner for Manchester North to be a 
result of prolonged exposure to mould in his home which Rochdale 
Boroughwide Housing took no action to treat or prevent; 

  
(b)     notes with concern that:-  
  

(1)    the Council currently has 6,193 overdue repairs logged, as of 
the 23rd of October; 
  

(2)    a significant number of the 6,193 overdue repairs are likely to 
relate to damp and mould, especially within the context of the 
Cost-of-Living crisis which has made it more challenging for 
tenants to heat their homes; 

  
(3)    several Councillors have reported that tenants suffering from 

damp and mould issues have felt blamed for the disrepair, 
rather than supported to manage the issues; 

  
(4)    customer complaints regarding the Repairs Service increased 

from 17 in 2020/21 to 115 in 2021/22; 
  
(5)    the Council has received more legal claims for disrepair as of 

the 18th of November (682) than it received for the whole of 
the 2021/2022 financial year (660); 

  
(6)    cuts to legal aid over the last decade have resulted in tenants 

finding it significantly more challenging to bring disrepair cases 
to court, with tenants’ only option often being to use ‘no win, 
no fee’ solicitors, who have targeted estates with high 
numbers of disrepair claims and often retain a large proportion 
of the awarded compensation; and 

  
(7)    Council spending on legal fees and compensation for legal 



 

 

disrepair claims is currently overspending by £2.6m on its 
£2.6m budget, and the Housing Repairs service as a whole is 
overspending by £7.3m, contributing to the overall HRA 
overspend of £12.7m; 

  
(c)      notes that:- 

  
(1)    the Social Housing Regulator has written to Chief Executives 

of all registered providers of social housing (including Sheffield 
City Council) requesting an assessment of the extent of damp 
and mould issues & hazards affecting our properties, what 
action we are taking to remedy these cases, and our 
procedures to ensure that individual damp and mould cases 
are identified and dealt with effectively, to be provided by the 
19th of December 2022; and notes that the response to this 
will be brought to the Housing Policy Committee and 
published; 

  
(2)    the Secretary of State for Levelling Up, Housing and 

Communities has similarly written to all Council leaders with a 
Housing Act 2004 Section 3(3) directive to provide an 
assessment of damp and mould issues affecting privately 
rented properties, an assessment of action that may need to 
be taken concerning this, and data on the above for the last 
three years, and notes that the response to this will be brought 
to the Housing Policy Committee and published; 

  
(3)    the Housing Ombudsman issued a report in October 2021 

(Spotlight on Damp and Mould: It’s Not Lifestyle), which 
contained several recommendations for member landlords, 
including to “review our initial response to reports of damp and 
mould to ensure they avoid automatically apportioning blame 
or using language that leaves residents feeling blamed”;  

  
(4)    believes that workers in the Housing Repairs team are 

working hard to tackle the backlog, but that political 
mismanagement has led to the current issues facing the 
service; and 

  
(5)    believes that Council tenants deserve repairs to be completed 

within a reasonable timeframe, and that fulfilling this 
requirement is critical to keeping our tenants healthy and safe; 

  
This Council therefore resolves to:- 

(d)     support Councillor Clement-Jones’s recent call at the Audit and 
Standards Committee on the 17th of November for an enquiry into 
the issues raised in paragraph (b); 



 

 

  
(e)     request that the Housing Policy Committee considers whether to 

add to its work programme consideration of new approaches to 
handling disrepair issues, such as:- 

  
(1)    appropriate officers providing the Housing Policy Committee 

with a broad appraisal of council housing disrepair and a 
strategy for improvement, including how they will implement 
the recommendations of the Housing Ombudsman’s 2021 
report “Spotlight on Damp and Mould”; 

  
(2)    creating an Alternative Disrepair Resolution Scheme, to give 

tenants an alternative to no-win, no-fee solicitors when 
seeking compensation for housing disrepair, as has been 
implemented by several other local authorities, including 
Lambeth and Southwark; and  

  
(3)    giving our tenants the right to directly employ an approved 

contactor if repairs are not carried out within an agreed time 
frame. 

  
  

  
8.   
 

NOTICE OF MOTION REGARDING "ADOPTING THE ALL-PARTY 
PARLIAMENTARY GROUP (APPG) ON BRITISH MUSLIMS' 
DEFINITION OF ISLAMOPHOBIA" - GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR ABDUL 
KHAYUM AND TO BE SECONDED BY COUNCILLOR ABTISAM 
MOHAMED 
 

 That this Council: 
  

(a)  notes that as part of the response to the Race Equality 
Commission, the Council has committed to making continuous 
improvements, develop racial literacy and eradicate racial 
inequalities which exist within the Council and the services it 
delivers, across the diverse communities we serve, and as part of 
this has developed a three-year improvement plan to help the 
Council, and more widely the city, to become an anti-racist city; 

  
(b)  believes that to better understand all facets of islamophobia it is 

important to have a clear definition and, therefore, suggests the All-
Party Parliamentary Group (APPG) on British Muslims’ definition of 
Islamophobia, that “Islamophobia is rooted in racism and is a type 
of racism that targets expressions of Muslimness or perceived 
Muslimness”, together with the explanatory guidelines put forward 
by the Coalition Against Islamophobia, should be considered; 

  
(c)  notes that Islamophobia is a growing issue, both locally and 

nationally; Muslims were targeted in 45% of all religious hate crime 



 

 

offences recorded in England and Wales in 2020/21; 
  

(d)  notes that these national figures are borne out in Sheffield, with 
South Yorkshire Police reporting a 43% increase in reports of 
Islamophobic hate crimes in Sheffield in 2021 compared to the 
previous year; 

  
(e)  notes that the records show that the majority of hate crimes 

targeting Muslims in Sheffield do not reach a resolution, whether 
that’s a charge brought, a caution issued or a community-based 
resolution, with fewer than 15% of hate crimes in 2021 resolved in 
one of these ways; 

  
(f)    agrees that, as per the Public Sector Equality Duty enshrined in the 

2010 Equality Act, the Council must give due regard to the need to 
eliminate unlawful discrimination and advance equality of 
opportunity for members of communities with a protected 
characteristic, including Muslims and believes this should mean 
they are able to participate in society on an equal footing with their 
non-Muslim counterparts; 

  
(g)  believes that Islamophobia is one of the principal barriers to the 

participation of Muslims in public, economic, political, and social 
spheres of life and must urgently be addressed; 

  
(h)  believes that:- 

  
(1)  adopting a definition of Islamophobia is essential to 

tackling    Islamophobia in a targeted and effective manner; 
  
(2) without a definition of Islamophobia, one cannot identify how 

Islamophobia manifests itself and functions and therefore, 
cannot devise meaningful strategies to address it; and 

  
(3) the Strategy and Resources Policy Committee should 

consider if this definition of islamophobia, and the supporting 
guidelines, is incorporated as part of its on-going work into 
the Race Equality Commission; and   

  
(i)    requests that the Strategy and Resources Policy Committee 

considers whether to add to its work programme consideration of:- 
  

(1)    working with schools, transport companies, the police force, 
and other public and private bodies, to tackle Islamophobia 
at a local level; 

  
(2)    collaborating with the local Muslim community to challenge 

Islamophobia and to meet their needs such that they are 
encouraged and safe to participate in public life; 

  



 

 

(3)    taking further steps to tackle and raise awareness of 
Islamophobia, such as organising Islamophobia training, 
holding local events on the issue of Islamophobia, etc.; and 

  
(4) working with other local stakeholders such as local MPs to 

raise awareness of Islamophobia in Parliament and urge 
the UK Government to adopt the APPG definition of 
Islamophobia. 

  
  
  

9.   
 

NOTICE OF MOTION REGARDING "MOVING TOWARDS AN ETHICAL 
DEBT COLLECTION POLICY AND ENDING THE USE OF BAILIFFS" - 
GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR SOPHIE WILSON AND TO BE SECONDED 
BY THE LORD MAYOR (COUNCILLOR SIONED-MAIR RICHARDS) 
 

 That this Council:- 
  

(a)     believes that, due to the ideologically driven actions of the 
Government over the past decade, alongside a crisis in global 
capitalism, ordinary people in Sheffield are facing a cost of living 
crisis and looming recession, and that, as a result, household debt 
has grown to unsustainable levels; 

  
(b)     notes that over half of all adults in the UK are in debt or seriously 

worried about falling in to debt; 
  

(c)      further notes that last year, Citizens Advice estimated that 3.5 
million people were in arrears with their council tax across the 
country; 

  
(d)     believes that the Autumn Budget has made clear that the 

Government are not interested in helping residents or councils 
deal with the cost of living crisis and the increase in debt, instead 
pushing councils to increase council tax, further exacerbating the 
financial struggles of ordinary people and attempting to pass the 
blame for financial hardship on to Local Authorities; 

  
(e)     notes that Citizens Advice estimate that 33% of council tax 

problems are caused by the way that councils collect the payment; 
  

(f)       further notes that analytics group Policy in Practice have recently 
presented evidence that stricter collection policies, including bailiff 
use, do not increase collection rates; 

  
(g)     recognises that being visited by bailiffs is a distressing experience 

which can be devastating for people’s mental health, and notes 
that over 50% of people in debt have mental health problems and 
people in debt are 8 times more likely to think about suicide; 

  



 

 

(h)       notes that residents who face bailiff action are also liable for the 
fees they charge, which begin at £75 for the ‘compliance stage’ of 
enforcement (receiving a letter), and often rise to an average of 
£310 during the lifetime of a debt, and believes that, in Sheffield, 
this only serves to increase the level of indebtedness of many of 
our residents and siphons money out of our local economy, 
harming the city at large; 

  
(i)         notes that in April 2018, Hammersmith & Fulham London Borough 

Council announced an end to bailiff action, and they have 
subsequently seen a rise in council tax collection rates;  

  
(j)       further notes that Southwark LBC, Newham LBC and Bristol City 

Council have also recently implemented more ethical debt 
collection policies;  

  
(k)      also notes that The Trussel Trust has reported in their ‘State of 

Hunger’ report that local government debt leads people to 
destitution and foodbank usage; 

  
(l)       notes that the Debt Justice Campaign, using the National Audit 

Office’s calculations to the Financial Conduct Authority, estimates 
that over indebtedness is costing the local and national 
government £9.7 billion per year in extra health, social care, 
employment and housing support, and believes that pushing 
residents into debt and poverty is a false economy for Sheffield; 

  
(m)    also believes that ending debt collection practices such as bailiff 

use, makes financial sense; and 
  
(n)     requests that the Strategy and Resources Policy Committee 

considers whether to add to its work programme consideration of 
what an ethical debt collections policy could mean in Sheffield, 
including, but not limited to:-  

  
o   Payment Flexibility 
o   Greater discretionary support 
o   Identifying Vulnerable households and data sharing between 

departments 
o   Establishing whether or not residents can afford repayments 
o   Ensuring everyone in debt is given free local debt advice 
o   Removing in year collections targets 
o   Having an irrecoverable debt policy which mitigates for that 

fact that a percentage of debt will not be recovered 
o   Ending Bailiff use  
o   Starting open communication with Hammersmith and Fulham 

Council to get feedback on how their policy is having a 
positive effect on the council’s finances and the wellbeing of 
their residents 



 

 

  
  

10.   
 

APPOINTMENT TO THE OFFICE OF SENIOR CORONER SOUTH 
YORKSHIRE (WEST) 
 

 To approve, with or without amendment, the recommendations in the 
report of the Executive Director, Operational Services, published with this 
agenda, seeking approval for an appointment to the office of Senior 
Coroner South Yorkshire (West). 
 
  

11.   
 

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING 
 

 To receive the record of the proceedings of the meeting of the Council 
held on 2nd November 2022 and to approve the accuracy thereof. 
  
  

12.   
 

MEMBERSHIPS OF COUNCIL BODIES AND REPRESENTATIVES TO 
SERVE ON OTHER BODIES 
 

 To consider any changes to the memberships and arrangements for 
meetings of Committees etc., delegated authority, and the appointment of 
representatives to serve on other bodies. 
  
  
  
 

 
 

 
 
 
David Hollis 
Interim Director of Legal and Governance   
 
 
Dated this 6 day of December 2022 
 
 
The next ordinary meeting of the Council will be held on 1 February 2023 at the 
Town Hall 
 
 



 1 

ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 
 
If you are present at a meeting of the Council, of its Policy Committees, or of any 
committee, sub-committee, joint committee, or joint sub-committee of the authority, 
and you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) relating to any business that 
will be considered at the meeting, you must not:  
 
• participate in any discussion of the business at the meeting, or if you become 

aware of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the meeting, participate 
further in any discussion of the business, or  

• participate in any vote or further vote taken on the matter at the meeting.  

These prohibitions apply to any form of participation, including speaking as a 
member of the public. 

You must: 
 
• leave the room (in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct) 
• make a verbal declaration of the existence and nature of any DPI at any 

meeting at which you are present at which an item of business which affects or 
relates to the subject matter of that interest is under consideration, at or before 
the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest becomes 
apparent. 

• declare it to the meeting and notify the Council’s Monitoring Officer within 28 
days, if the DPI is not already registered. 

 
If you have any of the following pecuniary interests, they are your disclosable 
pecuniary interests under the new national rules. You have a pecuniary interest if 
you, or your spouse or civil partner, have a pecuniary interest.  
 
• Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain, 

which you, or your spouse or civil partner undertakes. 
 

• Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from your 
council or authority) made or provided within the relevant period* in respect of 
any expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards 
your election expenses. This includes any payment or financial benefit from a 
trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.  
 
*The relevant period is the 12 months ending on the day when you tell the 
Monitoring Officer about your disclosable pecuniary interests. 

 
• Any contract which is made between you, or your spouse or your civil partner (or 

a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a beneficial 
interest) and your council or authority –  
 
- under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 

executed; and  
- which has not been fully discharged. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 3



 2 

 
• Any beneficial interest in land which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, 

have and which is within the area of your council or authority. 
 
• Any licence (alone or jointly with others) which you, or your spouse or your civil 

partner, holds to occupy land in the area of your council or authority for a month 
or longer. 
 

• Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) – 
- the landlord is your council or authority; and  
- the tenant is a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a 

beneficial interest. 
 
• Any beneficial interest which you, or your spouse or your civil partner has in 

securities of a body where -  
 

(a)  that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of 
your council or authority; and  
 

(b)  either - 
- the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 

hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or  
- if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 

value of the shares of any one class in which you, or your spouse or your 
civil partner, has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

If you attend a meeting at which any item of business is to be considered and you 
are aware that you have a personal interest in the matter which does not amount to 
a DPI, you must make verbal declaration of the existence and nature of that interest 
at or before the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest 
becomes apparent. You should leave the room if your continued presence is 
incompatible with the 7 Principles of Public Life (selflessness; integrity; objectivity; 
accountability; openness; honesty; and leadership).  

You have a personal interest where – 

• a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting 
the well-being or financial standing (including interests in land and easements 
over land) of you or a member of your family or a person or an organisation with 
whom you have a close association to a greater extent than it would affect the 
majority of the Council Tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward or 
electoral area for which you have been elected or otherwise of the Authority’s 
administrative area, or 
 

• it relates to or is likely to affect any of the interests that are defined as DPIs but 
are in respect of a member of your family (other than a partner) or a person with 
whom you have a close association. 

 

Page 14



 3 

Guidance on declarations of interest, incorporating regulations published by the 
Government in relation to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, has been circulated to 
you previously. 
 
You should identify any potential interest you may have relating to business to be 
considered at the meeting. This will help you and anyone that you ask for advice to 
fully consider all the circumstances before deciding what action you should take. 
 
In certain circumstances the Council may grant a dispensation to permit a Member 
to take part in the business of the Authority even if the member has a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest relating to that business.  

To obtain a dispensation, you must write to the Monitoring Officer at least 48 hours 
before the meeting in question, explaining why a dispensation is sought and 
desirable, and specifying the period of time for which it is sought.  The Monitoring 
Officer may consult with the Independent Person or the Council’s Standards 
Committee in relation to a request for dispensation. 

Further advice can be obtained from David Hollis, Interim Director of Legal and 
Governance by emailing david.hollis@sheffield.gov.uk. 
 
 

Page 15

mailto:david.hollis@sheffield.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



 
 
 
Report of: Ajman Ali, Executive Director Operational Services 
 
Date: 14th December 2022 
 
 
Subject: Appointment to the office of Senior Coroner South 

Yorkshire (West) 
 
 
Author of Report:  Ellie Fraser, Head of Bereavement and Coronial Services 
 
 Kim Beckett, Human Resources Consultant 
 

Summary: 
The report describes the process and seeks approval for appointment to the office of 
Senior Coroner South Yorkshire (West) in accordance with the Coroners and Justice 
Act 2009. 
 
 

Recommendations: 
 That the Council:- 
 

(a) Notes that the written consent of the Lord Chancellor and Chief Coroner to the 
proposed appointment has been received, and 

 
(b) Appoints Tanyka Rawden to the office of Senior Coroner South Yorkshire 

(West) in accordance with the Coroners and Justice Act 2009.  
 

 
 
Background Papers: N/A 
 
 
Category of Report: OPEN 
 

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL
Report to Council

Page 17

Agenda Item 10



2 

 
  
Statutory and Council Policy Checklist 
 

Financial & Commercial implications 
 

NO – Cleared by Liz Gough 
 

Legal implications 
 

NO – Cleared by Andrea Simpson 
 

Equality of Opportunity implications 

NO – Cleared by Adele Robinson 
 

Tackling Health Inequalities implications 
 

NO 
 

Human Rights implications 
 

NO 
 

Environmental and Sustainability implications 
 

NO 
 

Economic impact 
 

NO 
 

Community Safety implications 
 

NO 
 

Human Resources implications 
 

NO 
 

Property implications 
 

NO 
 

Area(s) affected 
None 

 
Is the item a matter which is reserved for approval by the City Council?   

Yes – in agreement with the Chief Coroner and the Lord Chief Justice 
 

Press release 
 

NO 
 

  

Page 18



3 

APPOINTMENT TO THE OFFICE OF 
THE SENIOR CORONER SOUTH 
YORKSHIRE (WEST)  

REPORT TO COUNCIL  
14 December 2022 

  
  
1. Introduction 
  
1.1 This report provides details of and seeks approval for the appointment to the office 

of Senior Coroner South Yorkshire (West). 
  
 Senior Coroner South Yorkshire (West) 
  
1.2 There are currently 83 Coroner Areas (based on the boundaries established by 

local authority districts) in England and Wales, each overseen by a senior coroner. 
The Chief Coroner and the Ministry of Justice have a joint long-term plan to reduce 
this to around 75. Area mergers are always considered whenever the opportunity 
arises, invariably when a senior coroner retires. 
 

  
1.3 The Chief Coroner has issued guidance on the appointment process (Guidance No 

6 – Appointment of Coroners (Revised March 2020)). The Guidance notes that the 
Local Authority ‘appoints’ coroners but they do not ‘employ’ them in any 
conventional sense, this is an important distinction. The appointment of a Senior 
Coroner by a local authority is very different to the other appointments we as a 
local authority will make.  

  
1.4 Once appointed the Senior Coroner becomes a judge and is required to make 

independent judicial decisions. Whilst we as a Local Authority pay the Senior 
Coroner’s salary there is no contract of employment between us as Local Authority 
and Senior Coroner. Senior Coroners should not be equated in financial or other 
terms with Chief Officers. 

  
2. Background and Proposals 
  
2.1 The South Yorkshire (West) coroner area includes an area of 269 square miles 

with a current population of around 837,285 which incorporates Sheffield and 
Barnsley local authority areas. Bordering coroner areas include South Yorkshire 
(East), West Yorkshire (Eastern), West Yorkshire (Western), and Derbyshire.  

  
2.2 The number of deaths registered in 2021 was 5542 in Sheffield and 2891 in 

Barnsley, with approximately 3,354 referred to the senior coroner, 637 inquests 
were held, and 1350 post-mortem examinations were conducted.  

  
2.3 Due to the retirement in 2020 of the previous Senior Coroner and the recent 

resignation of the Acting Senior Coroner, we are required to undertake a 
recruitment process to appoint to the role following statutory requirements and in 
line with The Chief Coroner’s Guidance. Sheffield City Council is the “relevant 
authority” for the appointment, the Senior Coroner’s office, staff, facilities and court 
being based in the Council’s Medico-Legal Centre. 

  
  

Page 19



4 

2.4 The Chief Coroner determines the coroner areas. When the previous Senior 
Coroner retired in 2020 the Chief Coroner, as described in paragraph 1.2 above, 
considered whether a merger with any other Coroner areas would be appropriate. 
Following submissions made on behalf of Sheffield City Council by the then Interim 
Chief Executive and Executive Director, Place Portfolio , it was agreed by the Chief 
Coroner’s office that it was not appropriate to merge South Yorkshire (West) with 
any other areas. The main reason for this is that South Yorkshire would become 
the 3rd largest jurisdiction in the country, and by far the most complex. It is likely 
that Sheffield would become the lead authority due to its comparatively large 
population and number of deaths, however the Medico-Legal Centre would be 
insufficient in size to house a combined jurisdiction and a new centre of operations 
would likely be needed. The Chief Coroner agreed with the view that South 
Yorkshire (East), covering Doncaster and Rotherham, and South Yorkshire (West) 
should remain as two separate jurisdictions. Therefore, in line with the above 
process a recruitment process was instigated to fill the vacant position with 
Barnsley MBC informed of this. 

  
2.5 Although the local authority appoints the Senior Coroner, the Chief Coroner is 

involved throughout the process, including providing the appointment pack and a 
template for the advert, giving feedback on shortlisting, and attending the 
interviews in person or through a nominee. The appointment pack is attached to 
this report as Appendix A. A competitive recruitment process has been followed in 
line with the Chief Coroner’s guidance, resulting in the proposed appointment. 

  
2.6 It is a statutory requirement in the case of a coroner area covering more than one 

local authority area that the relevant authority must consult the other(s) before 
appointing a senior coroner. In addition, a person may not be appointed unless the 
Lord Chancellor and the Chief Coroner have consented to the appointment. 
Barnsley MBC has been consulted about this proposed appointment and the Lord 
Chancellor and Chief Coroner have both given their consent.  

  
3. Human Resources Implications 
  
3.1 The Senior Coroner South Yorkshire (West) is a statutory office holding and not a 

contracted employee.  The pay set for the role of Senior Coroner is £130,417 per 
annum in line with JNC 66. 

  
4. Legal Implications 
  
4.1 The relevant local authority has a statutory duty to appoint a Senior Coroner for the 

Coroner Area under the Coroners and Justice Act 2009. The legal requirements for 
the appointment are set out in Schedule 3 to that Act. Pursuant to his statutory 
functions under the Act the Chief Coroner has produced guidance on the 
appointment process to assist local authorities in undertaking their duty. The 
appointment process described in this report has complied with the statutory 
requirements and has been carried out with regard to the Chief Coroner’s 
guidance.  

  
5. Financial and Commercial Implications 
  
5.1 There are no financial implications. This statutory appointment is funded jointly by 

Sheffield and Barnsley local authorities. 
  

Page 20



5 

6. Equality of Opportunity Implications 
  
6.1 As a Public Authority, we have legal requirements under Section 149 and 158 of 

the Equality Act 2010. We have considered our obligations under this Duty, and we 
do not consider that a full equality impact assessment is required in relation to the 
appointment. The position is a joint appointment, and it was openly advertised via 
the Chief Coroner’s website, Sheffield City Council website, and the LinkedIn 
professional media channel. All appropriate human resources processes were 
undertaken 

  
 
Ellie Fraser, Service Manager- Coronial and Bereavement Services 
Kim Beckett, HR Consultant  

Page 21



6 

 
APPENDIX A 

 
Senior Coroner Appointment Pack 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Candidate Information Pack 
 

SENIOR CORONER 
 

South Yorkshire (West) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Relevant Authority:  
Sheffield City Council 
 
 
28/08/2022  
 

Page 22



7 

CONTENTS  
 

SENIOR CORONER FOR SOUTH YORKSHIRE (WEST) 
INFORMATION PACK 

 
 

1. Advert        page 3 

2. Coroner Service Information     page 4 

3. Job Summary       page 4 

4. Summary of Terms and Conditions    page 7 

5. Recruitment and Selection Process    page 8 

6. Recruitment Timetable      page 10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This recruitment pack has been drafted in accordance with the Coroners and Justice Act 
2009. 
 

Page 23



8 

 
1.  ADVERT 
Senior Coroner for South Yorkshire (West) 
Salary £130,417 in line with JNC 66 (inclusive of out of hours provision) 
Closing date: Midnight on 2nd October 2022 
 
Sheffield City Council is seeking to appoint a new Senior Coroner. The current post-holder is sitting 
in a temporary capacity following the retirement of the previous permanent Senior Coroner in January 
2020.  
 
About the Post:  
The Senior Coroner stands at the head of the local coroner service and statutory coroner area and 
takes the lead on coroner work and will be expected to conduct inquests which are difficult or 
complex or will be likely to attract significant publicity.  
 
The number of reported deaths pa is 3,200+. Accordingly, we appoint our senior coroner with a salary 
on a full-time basis. 
 
A rota arrangement for out of hours cover including non-statutory provisions, for example responding 
to the needs of families who seek early burial, does not exist at present and needs to be put in place by 
the incoming Senior Coroner. The Senior Coroner’s base salary is reflective of the requirement for the 
Senior Coroner to cover 50% of the areas out of hours provision for no additional fee.  
 
Sheffield City Council is looking for an exceptional candidate with excellent proven organisational, 
management and efficiency skills, as well as experience of exercising sound judgement and 
communicating effectively. You will work closely with the local authority manager to ensure value 
for money, performance and financial efficiencies. Collaborative working with the local authority, the 
police and other stakeholders is essential.  
 
You will be required to demonstrate knowledge and experience of coroner law and of basic medicine, 
have proven skills in conducting investigations and an understanding of court procedure. You will 
also need to demonstrate the excellent communication and interpersonal skills necessary to deal with 
sensitive situations.   
 
It is essential that the successful candidate has proven experience of running or sharing running a 
coroner’s jurisdiction including carrying out investigations, case management, and conducting 
inquests.  
 
Who can apply:  
The successful candidate will be a barrister or a solicitor or Fellow of the Institute of Legal Executives 
and satisfy the judicial-appointment eligibility condition which means they will have five years of 
experience whilst holding that qualification. They will be under the age of 75, have experience of 
working as a Senior Coroner, area coroner or assistant coroner and be subject to the appointment and 
eligibility conditions within the Coroners and Justice Act 2009 (s.23 and Schedule 3). 
 
Statutory terms of the Appointment:  
Once a Coroner is appointed, they are then a Judicial Office holder until they reach the age of 
75 years (compulsory retirement age) unless they choose to resign or are removed by the Lord Chief 
Justice or Lord Chancellor prior to their 75th birthday.  
 
How to apply:  
The candidate pack is available on the Sheffield City Council website Senior Coroner for South 
Yorkshire (Western) | Sheffield City Council 
 
If you wish to have an informal discussion or arrange a visit, please contact Eleanor Fraser, Coronial 
and Bereavement Services Manager on 07970862606 or ellie.fraser@sheffield.gov.uk  
 

Page 24

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2009/25/notes/division/5/1/1/3/2
https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/node/3952
https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/node/3952
mailto:ellie.fraser@sheffield.gov.uk


9 

Suitably qualified applicants are requested to email their CV and their application to: 
recruitmentandtalent@sheffield.gov.uk  
 
Unsuccessful applicants for this competition may be considered for a possible future Area Coroner 
appointment, if you are interested in being added to this reserve list, please confirm this in your 
application. 
 
Notification 
 
The vacancy for this post has been notified to the Chief Coroner and Lord Chancellor (as required by 
statute). 
2.  CORONER SERVICE INFORMATION 
Area information 
 
The South Yorkshire (West) coroner area includes an area of 269 square miles with a current 
population of around 837,285. Bordering coroner areas include South Yorkshire (Eastern), West 
Yorkshire (Eastern), West Yorkshire (Western), and Derbyshire.  
 
The number of deaths registered in 2021 was 5542 in Sheffield and 2891 in Barnsley, with 
approximately 3,354 referred to the senior coroner.  
 
The Medical-Legal Centre in Sheffield is a dedicated facility owned and run by Sheffield City 
Council which incorporates the city’s public mortuary, iGene digital scanning service, post-mortem 
room, separate dedicated forensic post-mortem room, coroner’s offices, and two inquest courts. Child 
post-mortems are mainly carried out at the Sheffield Children’s Hospital. For residents of Barnsley 
the mortuary and post-mortem service is run out of Barnsley NHS Hospital.  
 
In 2021 637 inquests were held and 1350 post-mortem examinations were conducted.  
 
Sheffield is a hub for medical services. Within the city are Sheffield University and Sheffield Hallam 
University alongside several specialist hospitals, making it a centre for medical training, treatment and 
research.  
 
The Sheffield Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust manages the five adult NHS hospitals in 
Sheffield, arranging around one million appointments and operations a year. In Barnsley the main 
adult hospital is the Barnsley NHS Foundation Trust. 
 
The Sheffield Children’s NHS Foundation Trust is one of only three dedicated children’s hospital 
trusts in the UK, providing integrated healthcare for children and young people, including community 
and mental health care as well as acute and specialist services for Sheffield and South Yorkshire. 
 
Sheffield is a growing and ambitious city, proud to be independent and diverse. Whilst continuing to 
be a working industrial area, an area that produces, that makes, Sheffield and Barnsley have also seen 
significant renewal over recent years. Passionate about the outdoors and all it has to offer the region 
enjoys having the beautiful Peak District on its doorstep.  
 
Daily Operations and accommodation  
 
The Medico-Legal Centre is open to the public from 8am to 4pm Monday to Friday, and the staff 
offices are open from 8am to 6pm. The Senior Coroner has a dedicated office within the building 
where they are usually expected to work on a daily basis during the week. 
 
The day to day running of the building, including accommodation, contracts, tendering, finance, 
reception, court ushering, and support staff is managed by the Coronial and Bereavement Service at 
Sheffield City Council. The public mortuary is also staffed and run by Sheffield City Council.  
 
A team of coroner’s officers employed by the South Yorkshire Police Authority also operate out of 
the Medico-Legal Centre.  

Page 25

mailto:recruitmentandtalent@sheffield.gov.uk


10 

 
The Medico-Legal Centre is the first identified site should any mass fatality incident occur in the 
region.  
 
3.  JOB SUMMARY 
 
The role of the coroner:  

• Coroners are independent judicial office holders. When made aware that a body or bodies 
of deceased persons lie within the coroner area, the coroner is responsible for conducting 
investigations and holding inquests when required (with or without a jury) into deaths to 
determine who the deceased was, when and where the deceased came by his or her death 
and how that death occurred. A referral is made to the coroner when there is reason to 
suspect that: 

i. The deceased died a violent or unnatural death; 
ii. The cause of death is unknown; or                      

iii. The deceased died while in custody or otherwise in state detention. 
 

• Conducting investigations of this kind will include where appropriate directing pathologists 
and others to determine these answers. Coroners also have a duty to produce Prevention of 
Future Death reports should an investigation give rise to concerns about future deaths 
occurring from the circumstances that caused the death. Coroners also deal with claims for 
treasure when required in accordance with statutory regulations and guidance. 

 
Overview of the role of a senior coroner:  
 

The senior coroner stands at the head of the coroner service and leads in that area to ensure that a 
high-quality coroner service is provided to the local community that puts the bereaved at the heart 
of the process. This includes preparing for any significant emergencies which may occur and 
[where appropriate] to be available to assist with 24-hour availability on a rota basis as well as 
holding regular team meetings and liaising with stakeholders. The senior coroner will be 
responsible for submitting annual returns to the Chief Coroner and Lord Chancellor as and when 
required. This will include working effectively with the local authority and police authority 
[where applicable] and to hold regular meetings with both and with local Registrars. The senior 
coroner acts as the Data Controller for the coroners’ service, ensuring that all relevant legislation 
is observed and necessary security measures are put in place to protect against accidental or 
unlawful destruction, loss, alteration and disclosure of data. The senior coroner oversees the 
management of all post-decision challenges that are brought within the area to ensure compliance 
and that the challenge is properly dealt with.  

 
Senior coroner Role Responsibilities and Assessment criteria 
 
Assimilating and clarifying information  

 
Senior coroners are expected to be able to quickly assimilate information to identify essential 
issues, seeking clarification where necessary so a clear understanding of this information is gained. 
This will include possessing the ability to explain legal and medical terms to people from non-
legal or non-medical backgrounds. Senior coroners are responsible for assimilating information to 
write reports about the jurisdiction.  

 
Assessment criteria  

1. Excellent analytical skills and a consistency of decision-making and administrative 
direction. 

2. An ability to analyse information in order to support the effective running of a team.  
3. The ability to explain complex terms to those from non-legal or non-medical 

backgrounds. 
 

Managing work and leading effectively  

Page 26



11 

 
A large amount of coronial work takes place outside of the court setting and therefore senior 
coroners are expected to be able to lead and manage the work of the team effectively. Senior 
coroners will be expected to sit on the more complex and challenging inquests whilst providing an 
effective and efficient coronial service for the local community. When conducting inquests, senior 
coroners are required to lead by running hearings efficiently to facilitate a fair conclusion, 
minimise delays and effectively deal with case management. Senior coroners must respond calmly 
and flexibly to changing circumstances and prioritise work to make the most of available resources 
whilst taking in to account any budgetary considerations as appropriate. The Senior Coroner 
manages resources and assists the local authority with the appointment process of area and 
assistant coroners. Senior coroners are committed to ensuring that any expenditure is reasonable 
and controlled and works to monitor this regularly with the local authority.  
 

Assessment criteria: 
4. An ability to prioritise work effectively to minimise delays.  
5. Able to work at speed and under pressure.  
6. Demonstrates resilience responding calmly and flexibly to changing circumstances.  
7. Is able to manage and lead a team effectively.    

 
Working with others  

 
An ability to work constructively with others whilst demonstrating an awareness of diversity and 
showing empathy and sensitivity in building relationships is required in this post. Senior coroners 
must be able to constructively lead members of the coronial team and interact well with bereaved 
families and external stakeholders (e.g., relatives, police officers, medical personnel, mortuary 
staff, Registrars, witnesses and the media). The senior coroner will engage with the local 
community, for example giving talks and seeking feedback and views.  
 
Assessment criteria:  

8. Must have knowledge of the extent to which cultural and religious requirements can be 
met within the constraints of coroner law and practice.  

9. An ability to drive the service and be receptive to new ideas, reforms and diverse 
needs.  

10. Treats people with respect, sensitivity and in a fair manner without discrimination; 
ensuring the requirements of those with differing needs are properly met. 

11. An ability to work collaboratively with staff and their employers, internal and external 
stakeholders and relatives. 
 

Communicating effectively  
 
Senior coroners must be excellent communicators and have the ability to express themselves 
authoritively when required. They must be sensitive and, as far as possible, responsive to the needs 
and requirements of those who engage with the coroner service and also possess the awareness to 
manage their expectations of the process. Senior coroners must be IT literate and able to provide 
clear directions to staff on coroner investigations whilst creating a safe, harmonious and effective 
working environment through co-operative working and holding regular team meetings.  
 
Assessment Criteria:  

12. Excellent verbal and written communication skills. 
13. Establishes authority and inspires respect and confidence. 
14. Remains calm and authoritative even when challenged. 

 
 
 
 
Exercising judgement  

Page 27



12 

 
Senior coroners must demonstrate integrity and apply independence of mind to make incisive, fair 
and legally sound decision. Senior coroners must also possess the ability to use sound judgement 
in leading the team such as deciding suitable allocation of resources.  
 
Assessment criteria 

15. Able to deal with emotionally charged situations that require sensitive handling 
and confident/positive judgement.  

16. Experience of conducting investigative enquiries including demonstrating 
clarity of thought in identifying issues relevant to the investigation. 

17. Reaches clear, reasoned decisions objectively, based on relevant law and findings of fact. 

Possessing and Building Knowledge  
 

It is the responsibility of the senior coroner to keep an up-to-date working knowledge of coroner 
law, practice and guidance, and advise staff on developments as appropriate. Coroners must 
undertake compulsory Judicial College and Chief Coroner training as appropriate and the senor 
coroner, in conjunction with the local authority runs any local training. The senior coroner 
arranges and ensures that appraisals for all assistant coroners are completed. 

 
Assessment criteria:  

18. All applicants must be a barrister or solicitor or Fellow of the Institute of Legal 
Executives and satisfy the judicial-appointment eligibility condition which includes a 
requirement for the candidate to hold a relevant qualification, to have also gained 
experience in the law for a total period of at least 5 years whilst holding that 
qualification and be under the age of 70: paragraph 3 of Schedule 3. 

19. Thorough, up to date knowledge of legislation, case law and guidance relating to 
coroner’s duties. 

20. Knowledge of structures and procedures of the police, in particular those relating to the 
investigation of sudden or suspicious deaths. 

21. Knowledge of the organisational structures of local government including an 
understanding of the challenges facing local government, both at present and in the 
future. 

22. Experience of holding inquests, including jury inquests.  
23. Previous experience as a senior, area or assistant coroner 

 
Please detail the coroner work that you have undertaken including:   
 

(a) how many days worked as coroner; 
(b) the nature of the work; 
(c) the division of time between office and court; 
(d) the extent of experience in completing Forms 100A and 100B; 
(e) the number and type of inquests conducted; 
(f) the number of long inquests and their subject matter; and 
(g) the number of Jury inquests conducted. 
(h) experience of digital case management systems.  

 
Desirable criteria:  

24. Full current driving licence (unless disability precludes this) and use of a 
vehicle for work purposes. 

 
4.  SUMMARY OF TERMS & CONDITIONS OF THE SENIOR CORONER 

 
The conditions of service applicable to the post are those set out in Schedule 3, Coroners and Justice 
Act 2009. The senior coroner holds office on whatever terms are from time to time agreed between 
the coroner and the relevant local authority. You will not be an employee of the Local Authority.  
 

Page 28



13 

Salary 
 
The annual salary for the post is £130,417 for a basic 37-hour week which includes 50% provision of 
an out of hours service which must include responding to non-statutory duties, for example 
responding to the needs of families who seek early burial.  
 
Pension Scheme 
  
A Senior Coroner may join the Local Government Pension Scheme (LPGS) in accordance with any 
provisions relating to coroner appointments as applied to that scheme. 
 
Hours of work 
  
Following discussion and agreement with the relevant local authority, the Senior Coroner will arrange 
for an out of hours service. In accordance with The Coroners (Investigations) Regulations 2013, the 
Senior Coroner shall ensure that a coroner is available in the area at all times to address matters 
relating to an investigation into a death, which must be dealt with immediately and cannot wait until 
the next working day, including emergencies and other urgent requests. 
 
The Senior Coroner is expected to live within one hour travelling distance of the office and to work 
on a daily basis during the week in the office provided at the Medico-Legal Centre. 
 
Holiday entitlement 
 
The Senior Coroner will be expected to take an annual leave entitlement of 30 days (excluding bank 
holidays and public holidays).  
 
Sick Pay  
 
The senior coroner is entitled to sick pay in accordance with Sheffield City Council’s sick pay policy. 
Cover for any sick leave will be provided by an assistant coroner to meet the needs of the area.  
 
Payment of expenses  
  
Expenses will be paid in line with the Council’s expenses policy. 
 
Indemnity  
 
The Council will indemnify the Senior Coroner for costs or damages in relation to legal proceedings 
in accordance with Regulation 17 of The Coroners Allowances, Fees and Expenses Regulations 2013. 
 
Notice period 
   
The Senior Coroner may resign from office by giving notice in writing to the relevant authority, 
however the resignation does not take effect unless and until it is accepted by the authority. The 
Senior Coroner will be expected to give six months’ notice of retirement or resignation to enable the 
Council to comply with the provisions of the Coroners and Justice Act 2009 in filling the vacancy.  
 
Politically restricted post  
  
This post is politically restricted under the terms of Schedule 3, paragraph 4 of the Coroners and 
Justice Act 2009.  
 
 
 
The Guide to Judicial Conduct  
   

Page 29



14 

The Senior Coroner will comply with the standards as set out in the Guide to Judicial Conduct and 
other associated guidance.  
 
 
5.  RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION PROCESS  
 
Applications 
 
To apply for this position, you are required to submit a CV, a full supporting statement of up to two 
sides of A4 (no smaller than font 11). It is important that your supporting statement fully addresses 
the assessment criteria detailed in bold in the job summary section above.  
 
In particular please demonstrate how you meet the following criteria:  
 
1. Assimilating and clarifying information  
2. Managing work efficiently 
3. Working with others 
4. Communicating effectively  
5. Exercising judgement  
6. Possessing and Building Knowledge 
 
If you do not complete a full supporting statement, your application will be rejected.  Please ensure 
you include your work, home and mobile contact numbers, home address and e-mail addresses where 
applicable.  Please note that correspondence will be via e-mail unless otherwise stated. All 
correspondence and details provided will remain confidential. 
 
Employment references 
 
Please include the name, address and contact details for two references. Candidates should also state 
their relationship to the referee and at least one should be your current/most recent employer/head of 
chambers/relevant authority. References may be taken up for shortlisted candidates prior to interview. 
If you do not wish a reference to be taken up at this stage, please tell us the reasons why. We will 
always ask for two references at job offer stage. 
Evidence of qualifications 
 
Candidates will be required to bring evidence of their qualifications to the interview. 
 
Employment checks 
 
The successful candidate will be required to undergo the Council’s normal pre-appointment checks in 
line with the requirements of the post.  
 
Eligibility to work in the UK 
 
Candidates must be eligible to work in the UK. The successful candidate will be required to provide 
original evidence of their eligibility to work in the UK. 
 
Disciplinary proceedings and criminal convictions check 
 
Due to the nature of the post, it is exempt from the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 and therefore 
any conviction, whether spent or unspent, must be declared. All applicants will be required to 
complete a declaration form which will need to be submitted with the application form and CV. The 
declaration form can be found at the following link: Senior Coroner for South Yorkshire (Western) | 
Sheffield City Council 
 
The successful candidate will be required to undergo a DBS check.  
 

Page 30

https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/node/3952
https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/node/3952


15 

Applicants must specify in their application if they are the subject of any complaint or disciplinary 
proceedings by any professional body to which they belong (including personal conduct referred to 
the Judicial Conduct Investigations Office), and clearly state the salary or fee payable. Applicants will 
also be asked in interview to declare anything about themselves including in their past that might be 
an embarrassment to the Local Authority, the Chief Coroner or the Lord Chancellor particularly 
bearing in mind the basic set of guiding principles in the Guide to Judicial Conduct:   
https://www.judiciary.uk/publications/guide-to-judicial-conduct/ 
 
Interview 
 
You will be required to undertake a short presentation as part of the interview process. 
 
Chief Coroner’s role in the process 
 
The Chief Coroner or his nominee will be providing advice to the Council throughout the recruitment 
process, in particular so as to ensure that the process is fully transparent and fair. Although the Chief 
Coroner or his nominee may be at the interviews, they are not a member of the panel and as such have 
no role in scoring candidates or voting for a candidate. 
 
No appointment may be made unless the Chief Coroner and the Lord Chancellor consent to it. 
 
Once appointed a Coroner becomes and remains an independent judicial officer holder. 
 
 
6.  RECRUITMENT TIMETABLE  
 
Suitably qualified applicants are requested to email their CV, their application and their signed 
declaration to: recruitmentandtalent@sheffield.gov.uk 
 
Closing date: Midnight on Sunday 2nd October 2022  
 
Interview invitations will be sent out: 14th October 2022 
 
Interview dates: 2nd November 2022 
 
If you do not hear by 17th October 2022, please assume you have not been shortlisted. 
 
The interview panel will be: 
 
Ajman Ali, Executive Director Operational Services, Sheffield City Council 
 
Lisa Firth, Director of Parks, Leisure and Libraries, Sheffield City Council 
 
Eleanor Fraser, Coronial and Bereavement Services Manager, Sheffield City Council 
 
Observing - Chief Coroner or nominee  
 
We are aiming for the successful candidate to take up post as soon as possible. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 31

https://www.judiciary.uk/publications/guide-to-judicial-conduct/
mailto:recruitmentandtalent@sheffield.gov.uk


16 

 
 
JNC Circular 66 – Coroners pay 2021/22    APPENDIX B 
 

 
 
 
 

JNC Circular No.66 - Coroners' Pay
2021/22
Agreement has been reached on the pay award for
2021/22. Circular 66 provides further information and
revised salaries and pay rates effective from 1 April 2021.

Management Side Secretary, Sarah Ward
Local Government Association
18 Smith Square,
London, SW1P 3HZ
cccccccccoroners.queries@local.gov.uk

Officers’ Side Secretary, Joanne Kearsley
Phoenix Centre
L/Cpl Stephen Shaw MC Way (formerly Church Street)
Heywood OL10 1LR
joanne.kearsley@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 32



17 

 

JOINT NEGOTIATING COMMITTEE FOR CORONERS

To: Chief Executives (London Boroughs, Metropolitan Districts,
County Councils and Unitary Councils in England and Wales)

10 August 2021

CORONERS’ CIRCULAR No 66

Dear Sir/Madam
JNC for Coroners – Pay 2021/22

We write to confirm that agreement has now been reached. With effect from 1 April
2021, local salaries and day rates for individuals derived from the JNC arrangements 
below should be increased by 1.5%.

The new JNC figures are provided in the table below:

Senior coroner 1 April 2021

Range £123,553 to £137,281

Part-time senior coroner 1 April 2021

Base salary £21,120

Daily rate £465 to £528

Area coroner 1 April 2021

Range £91,873 to £105,601 � Print � Top

Assistant coroner 1 April 2021

Daily rate £397 to £479

Yours faithfully 

SARAH WARD

JOANNE KEARSLEY

Joint Secretaries

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 34



Minutes of the Meeting of the Council of the City of Sheffield held in the Council Chamber, Town 
Hall, Pinstone Street, Sheffield, S1 2HH, on Wednesday 2 November 2022, at 2.00 pm, pursuant to 
notice duly given and Summonses duly served. 

 
PRESENT 

 
THE LORD MAYOR (Councillor Sioned-Mair Richards) 
THE DEPUTY LORD MAYOR (Councillor Colin Ross) 

 
1 Beauchief & Greenhill Ward 10 East Ecclesfield Ward 19 Nether Edge & Sharrow Ward 
 Simon Clement-Jones 

Richard Shaw 
Sophie Thornton 
 

 Vic Bowden 
Craig Gamble Pugh 
Alan Woodcock 
 

 Nighat Basharat 
Maroof Raouf 
 

2 Beighton Ward 11 Ecclesall Ward 20 Park & Arbourthorne 
 Kurtis Crossland 

 
 Roger Davison 

Barbara Masters 
Shaffaq Mohammed 
 

 Ben Miskell 
Nabeela Mowlana 
Sophie Wilson 
 

3 Birley Ward 12 Firth Park Ward 21 Richmond Ward 
 Denise Fox 

Bryan Lodge 
Karen McGowan 
 

 Fran Belbin 
Abdul Khayum 
Abtisam Mohamed 
 

 David Barker 
Mike Drabble 
Dianne Hurst 
 

4 Broomhill & Sharrow Vale Ward 13 Fulwood Ward 22 Shiregreen & Brightside Ward 
 Angela Argenzio 

Maleiki Haybe 
Brian Holmshaw 
 

 Sue Alston 
Andrew Sangar 
Cliff Woodcraft 
 

 Dawn Dale 
Garry Weatherall 
 

5 Burngreave Ward 14 Gleadless Valley Ward 23 Southey Ward 
 Talib Hussain 

Mark Jones 
 

 Alexi Dimond 
Marieanne Elliot 
Paul Turpin 
 

 Mike Chaplin 
Tony Damms 
Jayne Dunn 
 

6 City Ward 15 Graves Park Ward 24 Stannington Ward 
 Douglas Johnson 

Ruth Mersereau 
Martin Phipps 
 

 Ian Auckland 
Sue Auckland 
Steve Ayris 
 

 Penny Baker 
Vickie Priestley 
Richard Williams 
 

7 Crookes & Crosspool Ward 16 Hillsborough Ward 25 Stocksbridge & Upper Don Ward 
 Tim Huggan 

Ruth Milsom 
Minesh Parekh 
 

 Christine Gilligan Kubo 
George Lindars-Hammond 
Henry Nottage 
 

 Lewis Chinchen 
Julie Grocutt 
Janet Ridler 
 

8 Darnall Ward 17 Manor Castle Ward 26 Walkley Ward 
 Mary Lea 

Zahira Naz 
 

 Terry Fox 
Anne Murphy 
Sioned-Mair Richards 
 

 Ben Curran 
Tom Hunt 
Bernard Little 
 

9 Dore & Totley Ward 18 Mosborough Ward 27 West Ecclesfield Ward 
 Joe Otten 

Colin Ross 
Martin Smith 
 

 Tony Downing 
Kevin Oxley 
Gail Smith 
 

 Alan Hooper 
Mike Levery 
Ann Whitaker 
 

    28 Woodhouse Ward 
     Mick Rooney 

Jackie Satur 
 

Page 35

Agenda Item 11



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 2 of 44 
 

 
1.   
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

1.1 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Peter Garbutt, Mazher 
Iqbal, Bob McCann, Peter Price, Safiya Saeed, Paul Wood and Ann 
Woolhouse. 

  
 
2.   
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

2.1 Personal interests in agenda item 6 (Notice of Motion Regarding "A Renewable 
Energy Strategy For Sheffield") (item 5 of these minutes), were declared by (a) 
Councillor Christine Gilligan Kubo on the grounds that she was a Director of 
Sheffield Renewables, (b) Councillor Alexi Dimond on the grounds that he was 
a member of Sheffield Renewables and (c) Councillor Paul Turpin on the 
grounds that he was a Director of a business involved with retro-fitting of 
buildings. 

  
 
3.   
 

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS AND OTHER COMMUNICATIONS 
 

3.1 Mayoral Engagements/Events 
    
  The Lord Mayor (Councillor Sioned-Mair Richards) and the Deputy Lord Mayor 

(Councillor Colin Ross) briefly reported on engagements and events they had 
recently attended regarding (a) the hosting in the city of the France, Scotland, 
USA and Wales Wheelchair Rugby League teams who were competing in the 
(delayed) 2021 Rugby League World Cup finals tournament being held in 
England from 15th October to 19th November, 2022, (b) the opening of a new 
school education building in Whirlow where young people who were struggling 
to learn in mainstream school settings can go to learn whilst receiving support 
to assist them to return to mainstream school and (c) the presentation to 
Pitsmoor Adventure Playground, by the Lord Lieutenant, of the prestigious The 
Queen’s Award for Voluntary Service, the awarding of which had been 
announced prior to the death of Her Majesty Queen Elizabeth II. 

    
3.2 Petitions and Public Questions 
    
  The Lord Mayor (Councillor Sioned-Mair Richards) reported that two petitions 

and questions from six members of the public had been received prior to the 
published deadline for submission of petitions and questions for this meeting.  
Representations were to be made on behalf of the petitioners on one of the 
petitions and the other petition would be received in the absence of a speaker.  
One further petition was to be debated at the end of the item, and this was 
referred to at item 4(b) on the agenda for the meeting. 

  
  
  
  
  

 

Page 36



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 3 of 44 
 

3.3 Petitions 
    
3.3.1 Petition Requesting the Council to Cancel the City Centre Clean Air Zone 
    
  The Council received an electronic petition containing 275 signatures, 

requesting the Council to cancel the City Centre Clean Air Zone. 
    
  Representations on behalf of the petitioners were made by Ibrar Hussain, who 

stated that, whilst appreciating the work undertaken, and progress made, in 
regard to the Clean Air Zone (CAZ), he considered that, given the current 
economic climate, such proposals would have a serious, adverse effect on the 
taxi trade. He referred to the fact that there was currently only one manufacturer 
producing electric Hackney Carriage vehicles, and that they were at a cost of 
approximately £60,000.  Mr Hussain was requesting that implementation of the 
CAZ be delayed to enable all parties to work together, to ensure that we have a 
clean, green city centre for all residents of Sheffield to enjoy.   

    
  The Council referred the petition to the Transport, Regeneration and Climate 

Policy Committee.  Councillor Julie Grocutt (Co-Chair of that Committee) 
thanked Mr Hussain for presenting the petition, and referred to the extensive 
discussions held with himself, and the taxi trade, on the planned implementation 
of the CAZ.  She stated that she understood the concerns raised by the taxi 
trade and, for this reason, the Council was constantly lobbying the Government 
for additional support for those people adversely affected by the proposals.  The 
Council recognised that it needed to do whatever was required in order to 
improve air quality in the city, and was committed to delivering the CAZ.  The 
Council, however, also recognised that the proposed scheme needed to be fair 
for all Sheffield residents, therefore would continue to lobby the Government for 
additional funding to enable this to be achieved. The Council wanted to work 
with all organisations and individuals to make sure the scheme was fair and 
equitable for all. Councillor Grocutt stated that the scheme would be rolled out 
in spring 2023, and further details would be released shortly, providing 
information on how people could apply for grants and loans.  The Council would 
work hard to mobilise the financial support measures, and provide assistance 
for people to make the required upgrades in terms of their vehicles as soon as 
possible.  Councillor Grocutt concluded by stating that the Council would 
continue liaising with the taxi trade and van drivers, and promised to do 
everything it could to support them.  

     
3.3.2 Petition Requesting the Council to Ensure that Rose Garden Café, Graves 

Park, is Funded, Repaired and Remains Open 
    
  The Council received an electronic petition containing 20 signatures, requesting 

the Council to ensure that Rose Garden Café, Graves Park, is funded, repaired 
and remains open.  There was no speaker for this petition. 

    
  The Council referred the petition to the Charity Trustee Sub-Committee. 
  
  
  

 

Page 37



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 4 of 44 
 

3.4 Public Questions 
    
3.4.1 Question From Matthew Killeya 
    
  Matthew Killeya asked the following question:- 

  
As we are all aware, people across our city are struggling with the cost-of-living 
crisis. In my own area, there is an old lady that is a vulnerable pensioner with a 
pre-paid meter and has seen her electricity bills more than double over the last 
year.  Doorstep lenders have been targeting people in the area. 
  
In dealing with the crisis, I want to commend the response made by Councillor 
Terry Fox in classifying this as a major incident and declaring this as a city-wide 
emergency and offering a package of support, acknowledging that this was a 
difficult thing to do given the Council’s current financial state and particularly 
under the austerity the city has lived in over the last 12 years. 
  
As our communities face such difficult circumstances - and given the financial 
pressures on main council budgets from years of government funding cuts - it 
has been suggested that Local Area Committees (LACs) budgets could be used 
to support people facing crisis.  There are supposed to be a valuable forum of 
local voices. 
  
I did write to Councillor Andrew Sangar, Chair of the South West LAC, on this 
matter over a month ago and thank him for his response, which I received late 
last night. 
  
The South West LAC is not being proactive or timely enough in responding to 
this crisis.  It’s not enough to simply commit to reprioritise budgets when the 
opportunity occurs, how and when will decisions be taken, what is the 
mechanism?  Could a special meeting be arranged as a matter of urgency, 
waiting until the next quarterly meeting to be held in January is just too slow. 
Ploughing on with the budget does not recognise the huge changes in 
communities since setting its budgets. 
  
Do you agree that all political parties should use all available budgets to 
prioritise support for those that are struggling ahead of items such as planting of 
wildflowers and tackling dog fouling, whilst we see our people through a very 
challenging period? And if so, what proactive measures are being taken to 
adjust the south west and other budgets and to engage the public on these 
decisions as a matter of urgency?  

    
  In response, Councillor Terry Fox (the Leader of the Council and Chair of the 

Strategy and Resources Policy Committee) stated that he had attended a 
meeting of the South West Local Area Committee (LAC) last month and listened 
to the debate.  He said that all local decisions should be flexible to adjust to the 
specific needs of communities and neighbourhoods in light of the cost of living 
crisis. Councillor Fox said that all LACs had community plans which had been 
developed before the cost of living crisis really took hold.  He said that he was 
helping to lead on the city response and was looking at how the most vulnerable 

Page 38



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 5 of 44 
 

residents of the city could be helped, and this included the role of Local Area 
Committees in coordinating responses in their areas.  He said that Councillor 
Sangar had shared with him the letter referred to and thanked him for that.  
Councillor Fox expressed the sheer enormity of the crisis which had hit the city 
and said that money lenders were operating everywhere.  He said that the 
Council had set up neighbourhood hubs and welcoming places and a number of 
cross-party committees had been established, working alongside Voluntary 
Action Sheffield and other organisations, to deliver pre-paid digital cards to help 
towards the pressures of the rising energy costs, the setting up of a helpline, the 
distribution of free school meal vouchers, the distribution of Council tax support 
monies to pension age households and many other schemes to offer help and 
support to the most vulnerable people across our city. 

    
  Councillor Fox said that with regard to the LACs, it was for them to decide how 

they roll out their budgets, to work with their local communities to offer support 
and help people to understand what we as Councillors do, and he welcomed 
members of the public to come and challenge us and hold us to account. 

    
3.4.2 Questions From Isobel O’Leary 
    
  Isobel O’Leary asked the following questions:- 

  
Question 1 The most high-profile issue currently is the closure and fate of the 
Rose Garden café. Can we trust that the Council understands the public’s 
desire to stabilise, restore and then maintain the current iconic Rose Garden 
café building rather than any options involving demolishing the café? Can we 
have faith that the Council will do their utmost to re-open the café as soon as 
possible for the benefit of the many park users and to restore the employment 
of the café staff who have provided a valuable service for years? 

    
  Question 2 The proposed sale of the Freehold for Bole Hill Farm, which is part 

of the designated charitable parkland, goes against the will and wish of JG 
Graves. The Council appear to believe that not only are they allowed to but are 
obliged to sell the Freehold to the current Leaseholder, despite the Charity 
Commission stating that the farm should not have been sold as it is designated 
land, and the Trustee has no power of sale.   
  
(a)      Has the Council as Sole Trustee of this charitable parkland consulted the 

Charity Commission on this proposed sale? 
  
(b)      Does the Council understand that the Leasehold Reform Act excludes 

charitable land? 
  
(c)      Can we trust that the Council is not seeking to mislead the public in 

suggesting that the current Leaseholders have the automatic right to buy 
the Freehold? 

    
  Question 3 Can we trust that the Council will fulfil their commitment to restoring 

the Nurseries area of Graves Park to parkland? This would be at no cost the 
Council as the Friends of Graves Park have a design and will provide labour 

Page 39



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 6 of 44 
 

and materials.  
    
  The Lord Mayor thanked Ms. O’Leary for her questions and invited Councillor 

Bryan Lodge (Chair of the Charity Trustee Sub-Committee) to answer the first 
and second sets of questions and Councillor Richard Williams (Chair of the 
Communities, Parks and Leisure Policy Committee) to answer the final 
question. 

    
  In response to the questions on the Rose Garden Café building, Councillor 

Bryan Lodge stated that this matter was to be debated later at this meeting, but 
he wished to emphasise that no decision had yet been taken in relation to the 
future of the building.  He added that consideration was being given to the 
possibility of applying for listed status for the building in recognition of its 
importance, and more detail on this would be provided during the later debate. 

    
  In relation to the sale of the Freehold for Bole Hill Farm, Councillor Lodge stated 

that the Council was the corporate Trustees of Graves Park and the role of the 
Charity Trustee Sub-Committee was to deliver the Council’s corporate 
responsibility.  The issue of the Freehold had been raised via a question asked 
at the Sub-Committee’s meeting on 25th October and the advice provided at the 
Sub-Committee’s meeting was that this formed part of the reversal of the 
Freehold.  Since that meeting, further information had been supplied to the 
Council by the Friends of Graves Park, and the Charity Commission had also 
submitted questions to the Council on that matter.  As a result, the Council was 
to undertake further investigations on this matter and the outcome would be 
reported to a future meeting of the Sub-Committee and made available to the 
public at the same time. 

    
  Councillor Richard Williams responded to the question regarding the nurseries 

area of Graves Park by stating that the Council’s position on the Norton Nursery 
area has not changed at the moment.  The City Council was undertaking a 
review of all its depots and was looking for alternative operating bases for its 
Parks and Countryside Teams and the wider Council staff.  Until then, the 
Council will have to continue to use the Nursery to service primarily Graves 
Park, but also some of the surrounding areas.  Councillor Williams said that he 
would ask for an update to be provided to the Communities, Parks and Leisure 
Policy Committee at the earliest opportunity to find out the status of that review.   

    
3.4.3 Questions From Russell Johnson 
    
  Russell Johnson asked the following questions:- 

  
1. I understand Sheffield City Council (SCC) commissioned Bevan Brittan LLP 
to investigate and report upon the improper (misuse) use of the exemption of 
Legal & Professional Privilege, by both officers and Elected Members to 
deliberately suppress legitimate requests for information (particularly with 
reference to the street tree dispute, now subject to a separate Independent 
Inquiry by Sir Mark Lowcock) as provided for in legislation. 
  
(a) On what date was this report commissioned? 

Page 40



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 7 of 44 
 

(b) Has this report been submitted to SCC and if so on what date? 
(c)  When can the citizens of Sheffield finally expect publication of this report? 
(d) What has been the full cost of this exercise? 
  
2. At Full Council on 7 July last year, I asked that the Council commit to the 
removal of Clause 6.38 from the Amey Streets Ahead PFI. This is the 
contractual requirement (not a ‘modelling number’ or ‘target’ as Mr. Mothersole 
referred to the figure in his Inquiry evidence last week) that requires the removal 
of 17,500 street trees during the PFI Contract. 
  
I was pleased and somewhat surprised that Councillor Wood answered in the 
affirmative. He appeared to see my request as unproblematic. Though some 
consternation seemed to be expressed by the then Director of Legal & 
Governance! 
  
However, as far as I am aware, this has not happened.  
  
(a)      Why not? 
  
(b)      In the context of Amey LG and Amey plc being under new owners who 
may no longer wish to mitigate reputational damage as Ferrovial needed to in 
preparing for selling, does SCC foresee additional difficulty in fulfilling their 
stated commitment to remove the clause or in reduced flexibility more widely? 
  
(c)      Given the history of incompetence and naivety of Sheffield Legal and 
Governance Department, - evidenced in recent Inquiry testimonies - can 
taxpayers be confident that the City’s interests will not be further disadvantaged 
in any negotiations with the new owners that may be required? 
  
3. Despite previous assurances, there are still delays and excessive redactions 
in the Council’s FOIR responses. 
  
(a) Does the Leader agree that it is in no one’s interests to return to the situation 
described by Councillor Lodge and former Chief Executive John Mothersole in 
their Inquiry evidence where the Council was bombarded with and overwhelmed 
by FOIRs and SARs?  
  
(b) Would the Leader give a commitment to offer such transparency and honest 
communications in future such that the Citizens need to resort to these routes 
less frequently? 

    
  The Lord Mayor thanked Mr. Johnson for his questions and invited Councillor 

Terry Fox (the Leader of the Council and Chair of the Strategy and Resources 
Policy Committee) to answer the first and third sets of questions and Councillor 
Joe Otten (Chair of the Waste and Street Scene Policy Committee) to answer 
the second set of questions. 

    
  Councillor Terry Fox stated that he had just returned from leave and not had 

time to provide as much detail as he would have liked. However, the Bevan 
report was commissioned to respond to the specific complaints made and it was 

Page 41



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 8 of 44 
 

intended to make the findings public and would do so in the very near future. He 
said the report would also be made available to the Street Trees Inquiry, but it 
was only right that the first person to see the report should be the complainant. 
It had taken longer to conclude for a number of reasons but should be resolved 
soon and then made public.  With regard to the specific questions, the report 
was commissioned in April last year and the final report received in August 
2022. The cost of this had been £35,900 including VAT. Councillor Fox stated 
that, as a Council, there was always information that could and could not be 
made public, therefore some things that simply could not be published.  
However, he felt that citizens should not have to use FOIs and SARs to gain 
information, and this was something he would look into. Councillor Fox said that 
he would be attending the Street Trees Inquiry within the next few weeks. 

    
  Councillor Joe Otten said that some of the questions asked had been raised by 

himself previously.  On the question of Clause 6.38 within the Amey Streets 
Ahead PFI contract, he had been advised that that clause had been removed 
and the contract change notice had been issued and the legal process was 
underway.  Furthermore, a target for removal of street trees was certainly not 
being applied in the operation of the contract.  He said that the Street Tree 
Partnership was where consultation and decisions on the outstanding tree 
issues were made, although he was a little frustrated at the slow progress being 
made in relation to some of the outstanding streets. However, work was 
progressing and there were street trees being saved on some streets as a result 
of changes being made to the earlier plans. On the question regarding the sale 
of Amey to the new parent company, this would not affect the Council’s rights in 
the contract and he was not concerned that there would be a material change in 
relation to the operation of the contract. However, he was concerned that there 
were performance issues associated with the contract and these would be 
considered at the next meeting of the Policy Committee in December. 

    
3.4.4 Questions From Rizwana Lala 
    
  Rizwana Lala referred to a number of distressing incidences that had occurred 

in and around the city regarding what she perceived to be a hostile environment 
towards asylum seekers and migrant people living in Sheffield, and she asked 
the following questions:- 
  
Can the Council assure us that they are using all their levers to end the hostile 
environment for migrants in Sheffield Hospitals? 
  
Can the Council tell us what steps are being taken to assure the welfare needs 
of asylum seekers are being met in the accommodation asylum seekers are 
housed in Sheffield?  

    
  The Lord Mayor thanked Ms. Lala for her questions and invited Councillor 

Angela Argenzio (Co-Chair of the Adult Health and Social Care Policy 
Committee) to answer the first question and Councillor Douglas Johnson (Chair 
of the Housing Policy Committee) to answer the second question. 

    
  In response to the first question, Councillor Angela Argenzio stated that the 

Page 42



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 9 of 44 
 

Council had awareness of what was going on in the city but that it was 
important to be informed of matters of concern.  She said there was a need for 
the Council to do all it could to use its leverage and put pressure on what was 
effectively a directive from national government.  She said the Council had a 
good relationship with local NHS bodies, it was very strong and getting stronger, 
but the Council was always prepared to ask difficult questions of its NHS 
partners.  Also, members of the public could ask questions at all Policy 
Committees and Councillor Argenzio invited Ms. Lala to attend the next meeting 
of the Adult Health and Social Care Policy Committee on 16th November and 

the Health and Wellbeing Board meeting, due to be held on 8th December, 
where representatives from the NHS would be in attendance and she could ask 
questions directly to them.  Councillor Argenzio added that, as a local authority, 
the Council cannot do very much in this matter but can put pressure on the NHS 
by asking those challenging questions. 

    
  In response to the second question, Councillor Douglas Johnson stated that the 

whole of Sheffield was proud to be the first City of Sanctuary, and that currently 
about 1,300 men, women and children currently living in the city were seeking 
asylum.  He said that when people come to this country, they were in need of 
housing, social services, education and other services, but they were not 
treated the same as other people, and the Council was not permitted to treat 
asylum seekers in the same way as it can treat local citizens who were 
homeless. He said the whole issue of migration was politically toxic, which was 
why migrants were sent down a different track.  Councillor Johnson said that 
Sheffield had a system in place of doing what it could, but the National Asylum 
Support Service (NASS) funnelled migrants and sometimes completely 
bypassed local authorities from getting involved.  The Council had no legal 
jurisdiction regarding the welfare of asylum seekers, but did its best to offer 
support where it could.  For example, Council officers within the private rented 
housing standards service were able to inspect and enforce accommodation 
standards in relation to houses in multiple occupation. With regard to education, 
the Council has the ability to provide education places for those of school age, 
but unfortunately not for those of pre-school age.  Adult & Children’s social care 
services had a role to play, as did the Environmental Protection service.  
However, Councillor Johnson alluded to the challenges faced by the Council in 
providing support to asylum seekers bearing in mind the financial pressures 
across the Council due to ever increasing demand and reductions in resources 
and the constraints caused by the Home Office’s outsourcing arrangements. 

    
3.4.5 (NOTES: 1. The questions which had been submitted by Abid Hussain and Matt 

Turner, but which had not been asked at the meeting due to their absence, 
would receive a written response from the Chairs of the relevant Policy 
Committees and be published on the website; and 
  
2. Questions from another member of the public had been received immediately 
prior to the meeting, but the Lord Mayor decided not to permit the questions to 
be asked on this occasion due to their late receipt and some of the content 
pertaining to an individual’s personal circumstances, and instead asked that 
written answers from the relevant Policy Committee Chair/s be provided to the 
questioner.) 

Page 43



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 10 of 44 
 

    
    
3.5 Petition Requiring Debate: Requesting The Council To Repair, Not Demolish, 

Rose Garden Café, Graves Park 
    
3.5.1 The Council received a joint electronic and paper petition containing 11,127 

signatures requesting the Council to repair, not demolish, Rose Garden Café, 
Graves Park. 

    
3.5.2 The Council's Petitions Scheme required any petition containing over 5,000 

signatures (from individuals who either live, work or study in Sheffield) to be the 
subject of debate at the Council meeting. 

    
3.5.3 Representations on behalf of the petitioners were made by Liz Hnat.  She 

stated that Rose Garden Cafe building was constructed in 1927 as a 
refreshment pavilion, at the instruction of JG Graves. This petition, which is now 
at over 11,000 signatures, shows the support that there is for repairing that 
building which the Council has deemed as being “At its End of Life”.  The Café 
had been closed down, with the current operators, Brewkitchen Ltd., being 
given 15 minutes notice to vacate the building.  Ms Hnat stated that she, along 
with many other people, feel very strongly that this iconic building should be 
saved, and she had started the petition on the same day that the building had 
been closed.  Very quickly, and with little effort, people were signing the petition 
at an incredible rate, showing just how much anger there was and how much 
support there is for repairing the building.  She added that, whilst the Council’s 
Petitions Scheme requires that signatories needed to be from very specific 
Sheffield postcodes, the petition gained signatures from people from all over the 
country who were visiting for the day. There are people in Rotherham, 
Dronfield, Barnsley and beyond who are regular users of Graves Park, and 
whose very valid signatures should be counted.  Ms Hnat stated that J G 
Graves gifted Graves Park to the people of Sheffield in 1925, but in 1927, he 
was also gifted a gold key to the Rose Garden Pavilion when it was completed, 
as a sign of admiration for the work which he, the then Lord Mayor and 
Alderman, was doing for the city. This building is a last thread to his legacy. It 
represents memory, community and generosity.  She commented that the 
campaign group have heard many stories from so many different generations 
about what that building means to them. Part of that is that it’s a meeting place 
and a cafe, but its architecture, and how it looks in the Park, is woven into those 
memories, and is a physical link to history that we are losing from so many 
parks and places at this moment in time.  Ms. Hnat stated that a building that 
isn’t even 100 years old should not be at risk of demolition, and that the 
situation we are now in is because of years of neglect by this Council’s current 
and previous Administrations.  Nobody has maintained the building, with only 
reactive repairs, at best, having been undertaken.  She added that, in 2018, the 
Council was made aware that the building was in a serious state of disrepair 
and yet nothing was done. It is disgraceful that its history is now at risk because 
of the Council’s inaction. The people of Sheffield, to date, have still not received 
an apology for that neglect.  Ms. Hnat commented that the petitioners do not 
agree that the building is at the end of its life.  Demolition is not an option we 
even consider viable. The petitioners will fully support fundraising activities to 

Page 44



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 11 of 44 
 

repair the Cafe building once they know the target they need to work towards, 
but do not want an additional lengthy consultation process, which will damage 
the building to a further extent as its left to crumble during that period.  Ms Hnat 
concluded by stating the 11,000 signatures already show the level of support 
there is for the repair of the building, and that all signatories want the Café to be 
repaired, improved and reinvigorated.  They want its history to remain, and want 
new generations to make memories there.  They want this building to shine in 
all its glory as a link to our past and future, so that JG Graves’ legacy and his 
generosity will be remembered.  

    
3.5.4 Councillor Bryan Lodge (Chair of the Charity Trustee Sub-Committee), in 

responding to the petition, thanked Ms Hnat for presenting the petition, and 
stated that it was clear that there was a considerable level of feeling and 
support for the café building, not only from Sheffield residents, but people from 
surrounding areas and across the country. The Council was looking at 
submitting a listing application for the building, which, if successful, would help 
the Council to find additional funding for the provision of a building fit for the 
location. Councillor Lodge stated that the issue had been discussed at a recent 
meeting of the Charity Trustee Sub-Committee, at which there had been 
reference made, in the structural report, to the building reaching its “end of life”. 
 He stressed that there were no current plans to demolish the building as the 
Council needed to undertake a full appraisal of its condition, and a full structural 
survey would be commissioned. Councillor Lodge apologised for the decision to 
close the building at such short notice, particularly regarding the effect on the 
staff who worked in the cafe, but indicated that this decision had been 
necessary for health and safety reasons. He referred to the possible options 
open to the Council. The Council had written to the Chair of the Charity 
Commission, seeking its advice on the options and, when such advice was 
received, and the results of the full structural survey were known, a full options 
appraisal would be undertaken. The Council would work with the Friends 
Group, the Campaign Group and other interested parties, and when the building 
was safe to access, Brewkitchen Ltd would be invited to offer a service from the 
building. There would be a consultation process, where the views of all 
stakeholders and interested parties would be sought, and it was hoped that 
such consultation would not last too long. 

    
3.5.5 Councillor Richard Williams (Deputy Chair of the Charity Trustee Sub-

Committee and also Chair of the Communities, Parks and Leisure Policy 
Committee) thanked Ms Hnat for presenting the petition, and stated that it was a 
great achievement to get over 11,000 signatures, and was a testament to both 
the hard work of the organisers and the depth of feeling people had for the 
building. Whilst appreciating the concerns of the petitioners, Councillor Williams 
stated that, unfortunately, the Council did not currently have the resources to 
commit to a way forward. He stated that whilst there was a chance that the 
building could be beyond repair, he sincerely hoped that the results of the 
structural survey indicated otherwise. He reiterated the fact that the Council was 
willing to work with all stakeholders to find a solution to the problem. Councillor 
Williams referred to the commitment made by members of the Graves Park and 
Beauchief and Greenhill Wards, to allocate £10,000 each towards a Rose 
Garden Cafe Restoration Fund.  Councillor Williams concluded by stating that 

Page 45



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 12 of 44 
 

the Council needed to take a serious look at how it managed its buildings and 
bring the management of the buildings closer to their local communities.  The 
Council also had to review income generation in its parks, and look at how this 
could be done more effectively going forward.  

    
3.5.6 Councillor Marieanne Elliot (Group Spokesperson on the Communities, Parks 

and Leisure Policy Committee) stated that there had been issues in the past 
arising from outsourcing, and that a cafe in Graves Park should be part of the 
Park’s facilities. She believed that the outsourcing of the building to various 
organisations in the past had resulted in successive leases, which had not 
addressed the need for the upkeep of the cafe building. Councillor Elliott 
believed that, in future, there needed to be a clear agreement between the 
organisations operating the Council's parks and the Council in terms of the 
liability for repairs and maintenance, and suggested that the Parks and 
Countryside Service should deal with the operational aspects in this case. She 
referred to the poor communication between the Council and the Friends Group 
in the past, which had resulted in a lack of trust, stating that it was hoped that 
this lack of trust could be rebuilt, and that the Ward Councillors could take an 
active role by working closely with the Friends Group. It was hoped that all 
interested parties could work towards the shared aim of getting a cafe back in 
the Park. 

    
3.5.7 Councillor Janet Ridler (Council’s Heritage Spokesperson) welcomed the 

receipt of the petition, and recognised the importance of Rose Garden Cafe 
building to the local community and the residents of Sheffield, particularly in 
terms of its history and heritage, as well as a cafe facility for users of Graves 
Park.  Councillor Ridler stated that the Cafe was an iconic heritage building, and 
that the petition had highlighted the passion and determination of the local 
community to restore and protect the building.  She supported the proposal to 
apply to Historic England for listed building status, which would not only validate 
the building’s importance as a heritage asset, but also support the Council in 
protecting the building by opening up new opportunities for external funding.  
She stated that she would like to work with Ms Hnat and the Campaign Group 
on the listing application.  Councillor Ridler concluded by stating that the 
Council would do everything possible to restore the building for the enjoyment 
of future generations.  

    
3.5.8 Councillor Ian Auckland highlighted the clear object of the campaign, which was 

to save, and not demolish, the cafe building.  He believed that, in the past, the 
Council had often failed to make the distinction between buildings with 
charitable status and the Council's general policy regarding such buildings.  He 
explained the charitable status of the building, and referred to the wording of the 
Charity deeds, which stated that the first call on the Charity's assets was to 
maintain the building. Councillor Auckland concluded by stating that if local 
Ward Councillors had been nominated as Trustees of the Charity, there would 
have been positive action taken in 2018, when the structural problems 
regarding the roof had first been identified.  

    
3.5.9 Councillor Douglas Johnson congratulated the petition organisers for the huge 

numbers of signatures obtained, and stated that, whilst the building was not 

Page 46



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 13 of 44 
 

going to collapse, there was a need for restoration works, which it was hoped 
could be undertaken as soon as possible to allow for the building to be used as 
a cafe again. Councillor Johnson referred to the funding provided by the Council 
towards the upkeep of Graves Park, as well as other parks in the city, indicating 
that there was a need for better investment in all the city’s parks.  

    
3.5.10 Councillor Richard Shaw thanked the petitioners for their hard work, and stated 

that, in his opinion, the way the cafe staff had been asked to leave the building, 
with 15 minutes notice, had been disgraceful.  Councillor Shaw referred to the 
report submitted to the Council in 2018, setting out the structural condition of 
the building, indicating that it was likely that it would now cost substantially more 
to repair given the delays in taking action at that time.  He also suggested that 
local Ward Councillors should be appointed Trustees of the Charity in order to 
safeguard the Park's heritage, and referred to the donation of £10,000 by 
Members of the Graves Park and Beauchief and Greenhill Wards towards the 
restoration works.  Councillor Shaw concluded by asking that any additional 
city-wide funding should be used towards the restoration works.  

    
3.5.11 Liz Hnat and Andy Kershaw shared the petitioners’ right of reply.  Ms. Hnat 

stated that whilst she welcomed and appreciated the efforts being taken to 
repair the café building, specifically the application for listing status, she had 
concerns that if such an application was successful, it could potentially result in 
the restoration and repair works becoming exponentially more expensive.  She 
referred to the comments made about the building not being in a state of 
collapse, questioning why, if this was the case, the cafe staff had been asked to 
leave with 15 minutes notice.  Andy Kershaw thanked Members of the Council 
for their supportive comments, as well as the Campaign Group for the excellent 
work they had undertaken to date. He stated that Brewkitchen Ltd. had been 
running the cafe for 14 years, and that the Company’s 12 members of staff had 
been out of work for a considerable time, and would continue to be out of work 
over Christmas.  He emphasised that it was the Council's responsibility to repair 
the building, and not Brewkitchen, and referred to the use of the term “end of 
life”, which he did not accept on the basis that he believed that any building 
could be repaired.  Mr Kershaw concluded by expressing his thanks for the 
£20,000 donation from the Members of the Graves Park and Beauchief and 
Greenhill Wards towards the restoration of the café. 

    
3.5.12 Councillor Bryan Lodge responded to issues raised during the debate, stating 

that whilst it was acknowledged that things could have been done better in the 
past, the Charity Trustee Sub- Committee was now looking at the issue, and the 
Council had commissioned the work with regard to the structural assessment of 
the cafe building. 

    
3.5.13 The outcome of the debate on the petition was as follows:- 

  
Proposal 1 
  
It was moved by Councillor Bryan Lodge and seconded by Councillor Richard 
Williams, that:- 
  

Page 47



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 14 of 44 
 

“The petition be referred to the Charity Trustee Sub-Committee for 
consideration.” 
  
Proposal 2 
  
It was moved by Councillor Douglas Johnson and seconded by Councillor 
Marieanne Elliot, that:- 
  
“The petition be referred to the Communities, Parks and Leisure Policy 
Committee for consideration.” 

    
  On being put to the vote, conducted by a show of hands, Proposal 1 was 

carried. 
    
  (NB: Members of the Labour and Liberal Democrat Groups, plus Councillors 

Lewis Chinchen and Sophie Wilson, voted for Proposal 1.  Members of the 
Green Group abstained from voting on Proposal 1 in view of their support for 
Proposal 2.) 

    
3.5.14 Accordingly, the resolution passed by the Council was as follows:- 
    
    
  RESOLVED:  That this Council refers the petition to the Charity Trustee Sub-

Committee for consideration, in recognition that the Sub-Committee is to meet 
to consider the future of the Café Building upon receipt of the reports of the 
detailed survey work being undertaken and of guidance from the Charity 
Commission on options in relation to the future of the Building, and 
acknowledging that, subsequently, either or both of the Finance Sub-Committee 
and the Communities, Parks and Leisure Policy Committee may also have a 
decision-making role in relation to the future of the Building. 

    
  
 
4. 
 

MEMBERS' QUESTIONS 
 

4.1 Prior to the commencement of this item of business, a motion moved by 
Councillor Dianne Hurst and seconded by Councillor Talib Hussain, that, in 
accordance with Council Procedure Rule 9.1, the order of business as published 
on the Council Summons be altered by moving agenda item 5 (Members’ 
Questions) to be taken after item 9, was put to the vote and was lost. 

    
4.2 Urgent Business 
    
  There were no questions relating to urgent business under the provisions of 

Council Procedure Rule 16.6(ii). 
    
4.3 South Yorkshire Joint and Combined Authorities 
    
  There were no questions relating to the discharge of the functions of the South 

Yorkshire Joint Authorities for Fire and Rescue and Pensions and of the South 

Page 48



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 15 of 44 
 

Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority, under the provisions of Council 
Procedure Rule 16.6(i). 

    
4.4 Written Questions 
    
  A schedule of questions to Chairs of Policy Committees, submitted in 

accordance with Council Procedure Rule 16, and which contained written 
answers, was circulated.  Supplementary questions, under the provisions of 
Council Procedure Rule 16.4, were asked and were answered by the appropriate 
Policy Committee Chairs until the expiry of the time limit for Members’ Questions 
(in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 16.7). 

  
 
5. 
 

NOTICE OF MOTION REGARDING "A RENEWABLE ENERGY STRATEGY 
FOR SHEFFIELD" - GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR CHRISTINE GILLIGAN KUBO 
AND TO BE SECONDED BY COUNCILLOR DOUGLAS JOHNSON 
 

5.1 It was moved by Councillor Christine Gilligan Kubo, and seconded by Councillor 
Douglas Johnson, that:-  

    
  This Council believes:- 
    
  (a)      that, if Sheffield is to play its part in achieving the Paris Climate targets, 

meet its net zero target by 2030 and address the cost of living crisis, we 
need to reduce energy demand through energy efficiency measures such 
as retrofitting homes and other buildings; and to significantly raise the 
amount of energy we produce from renewable sources;  

    
  (b)      having more of our energy produced from renewable sources helps us 

control costs by having secure forms of energy generated locally; energy 
security means that the UK is less at the mercy of dubious and 
undemocratic regimes with poor human rights records that are often the 
suppliers of fossil fuels;  

    
  This Council resolves:- 
    
  (c)      to ask the Transport, Regeneration and Climate Policy Committee to 

consider:- 
    
  (i)       conducting an audit of the potential for renewable energy 

installations and energy efficiency measures on all Council land 
and property, draw up a priority list for installations based on the 
most potential to save energy and generate clean energy, and 
present it to the Committee within 6 months; 

    
  (ii)       installing solar photovoltaics on all new build Council-owned 

buildings where technically feasible, recognising that integrated 
roof systems are cheaper to install than retrofitting solar systems 
after construction; 

    

Page 49



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 16 of 44 
 

  (iii)      creating a Local Area Energy Plan for Sheffield that has the 
buy-in of the wider community and lead a local area energy 
planning process that involves both the network operators and 
other key stakeholders, including developers, energy experts and 
community energy groups; 

    
  (iv)      investigating establishing strategic partnerships with 

renewable and energy efficiency installers to help ensure 
certainty on cost and delivery of measures and report back to the 
Committee within 6 months; 

    
  (v)      encouraging the establishment of partnerships with local 

Community Renewables organisations to enable low cost/no 
cost installations funded through citizens’ investments; 

    
  (vi)      maximising external funding to finance installations using 

Government, South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority and 
any ethical sources; 

    
  (vii)     using funding available for solar installations from 

Cooperatives on Council buildings and encouraging take up of this 
funding by large commercial organisations; 

    
  (viii)    encouraging wider community investment in local renewable 

energy projects through a range of measures including, but not 
limited to, Community Share Offers and Municipal Bonds; 

    
  (ix)      developing a compelling offer for private householders and 

landlords to support the installation of solar photovoltaics and high 
cost energy efficiency measures; 

    
  (x)      encouraging best practice in Planning to support renewable 

energy installations by developers and to create a low carbon 
energy supply; 

    
  (xi)      encouraging renewable and energy efficiency skills by 

establishing links and relationships between our partners in the 
Renewable Energy and Energy Efficiency sectors with appropriate 
local training and education providers; 

    
  (xii)     ensuring training opportunities and new skills are included in 

all projects and that contracts related to energy efficiency and 
renewables should include commitments from contractors on 
providing training opportunities and new skills for local people; and 

    
  (xiii)    requiring new energy generation projects of 5MW or above to have 

at least 5% local ownership. 
    
5.2 Whereupon, it was moved by Councillor Minesh Parekh, and seconded by 

Councillor Ruth Milsom, as an amendment, that the Motion now submitted be 

Page 50



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 17 of 44 
 

amended by:- 
    
  1.       the addition of new paragraphs (c) to (i) as follows:- 
    
            That this Council:-  
    
  (c)      believes that the Co-operative Party’s plan for community-owned 

energy, which sets out how the Government can scale up 
community-owned energy - including through establishing a new 
National Community Energy fund and developing a National 
Community Energy Strategy - would give local people control over 
renewable production and deliver energy sovereignty for our 
communities; 

    
  (d)      believes that, as part of the on-going development of the Ethical 

Procurement Policy and Community Wealth Building Charter, the 
Council must work to remove procurement barriers to producers 
selling their energy locally, and believes allowing councils to 
prioritise community-owned projects in procurement and planning 
would level the playing-field between community-owned energy 
and privately-owned giants; 

    
  (e)      believes that the South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority’s 

Energy Strategy is right to set ambitions to double the number of 
community energy organisations in South Yorkshire by 2040, and 
produce 100kW of community energy per year by 2030; 

    
  (f)       believes that the Council must continue working alongside Sheffield 

MPs to put pressure on the Government to deliver the Local 
Electricity Bill, in order to deliver more clean, local energy that 
benefits local communities;  

    
  (g)      supports the £3.5m of capital investment put forward through the 

Labour Group’s budget amendment approved in March 2022 - to 
decarbonise community buildings, install renewable energy 
infrastructure, and enact energy efficiency measures – and 
believes this shows the Council’s ambition to deliver Clean Growth 
and to help Sheffield through the cost-of-living crisis;   

    
  (h)      notes that Sheffield generates more renewable energy than other 

comparable cities, but has relatively low levels of solar, wind and 
hydroelectricity; and believes, therefore, this investment is key to 
creating jobs and reducing emissions from the Council’s 38,000 
homes and 4,000 land and property assets including community 
buildings; 

    
  (i)       notes that the Strategy and Resources Policy Committee recently 

approved £13.24 million to improve insulation on 117 ‘Airey’ 
properties and £10.42 million to install external wall and roof 
insulation to 255 Council homes; 

Page 51



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 18 of 44 
 

    
  2.       the re-lettering of original paragraph (c) as a new paragraph (j);  
    
  3.       the insertion, in the sub-paragraph (i) of new paragraph (j), of the words 

“ensuring that this is considered as part of the on-going Community Asset 
Plan” immediately prior to the words “and present it to the Committee 
within 6 months”; 

    
  4.       the insertion, at the end of the sub-paragraph (iii) of new paragraph (j), of 

the words “- with each Local Area Committee (LAC) involved and 
maximising the ‘tool kit for engagement’ in the development of Local Area 
Energy Plans”; 

    
  5.       the replacement, at the beginning of the sub-paragraph (ix) of new 

paragraph (j), of the word “developing” by the words “working alongside 
the Housing Policy Committee to develop”; 

    
  6.       the replacement, at the beginning of the sub-paragraph (xii) of new 

paragraph (j), of the word “ensuring” by the words “working alongside the 
Economic Development and Skills Policy Committee to ensure”; 

    
  7.       the replacement of “5%” by “20%”, in the sub-paragraph (xiii) of new 

paragraph (j); and 
    
  8.       the addition of a new sub-paragraph (j)(viii) as follows, and the re-lettering 

of sub-paragraphs (j)(viii) to (xiii) as new sub-paragraphs (j)(ix) to (xiv):- 
    
  (j)(viii) working with the Strategy and Resources Policy Committee to 

address procurement barriers to support community energy 
installations on Council buildings through the development of 
Sheffield’s Ethical Procurement Policies and Community Wealth 
Building Charter; 

    
5.3 It was then formally moved by Councillor Andrew Sangar, and formally seconded 

by Councillor Barbara Masters, as an amendment, that the Motion now 
submitted be amended by the deletion of paragraph (c) and the addition of a new 
paragraph (c) as follows:- 

    
  (c)      to ask the Transport, Regeneration and Climate Policy Committee to 

consider creating a Local Area Energy Plan for Sheffield and leading a 
local energy planning process to identify the most effective route for 
Sheffield to meet its net zero target, examining the following proposals:- 

    
  (i)       working to reduce energy demand by investing in insulation and 

alternative heating systems which use non-carbon energy sources, 
including exploring how to deliver the long delayed insulation works 
to council stock; 

    
  (ii)       encouraging the creation of Local Energy Grids where new 

renewable energy infrastructure is installed, insulating local 

Page 52



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 19 of 44 
 

businesses and residents from large swings in the wider market, 
and working with the Parish and Town Councils to achieve this;  

    
  (iii)      investigate expanding the district heating system to a greater 

number of homes and businesses, and examining the use of mine 
water to provide geothermal heat, capitalising on the recently 
announced exemption of heat networks from business rates; 

    
  (iv)      conducting an audit of the potential for renewable energy 

installations and energy efficiency measures on all Council land 
and property, draw up a priority list for installations based on the 
most potential to save energy and generate clean energy, and 
presenting it to the Committee within 6 months; 

    
  (v)      investigate incorporating sources of renewable energy generation 

into all Council-owned buildings where technically and financially 
feasible; 

    
  (vi)      maximising external funding to finance installations using 

Government, South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority, and 
other funding sources, particularly to address retrofitting insulation 
and use of carbon-based heating;  

    
  (vii)     examine the feasibility through this planning process of introducing 

a 'Greener Sheffield Fund', managed by Local Area Committees to 
allow local communities to dictate how they would like to invest in 
their environment; 

    
  (viii)    examining how best to support businesses in the city to shrink their 

carbon footprint, for example through installing solar panels and 
decarbonising their supply chain; and 

    
  (ix)      drawing on the steps made towards net zero of Liberal Democrat-

led councils, such as South Somerset's investment in a 25MW 
battery energy storage facility supporting development of 
renewable energy, Bedford's installation of a hydropower facility on 
the River Great Ouse, and Colchester's planning policy mandating 
EV charging points on all new homes. 

    
5.4 After contributions from two other Members, and following the decline of the right 

of reply by Councillor Christine Gilligan Kubo, the amendment moved by 
Councillor Minesh Parekh was put to the vote and was carried. 

    
5.4.1 (NOTE: The result of the vote was FOR - 47 Members; AGAINST - 0 Members; 

ABSTENTIONS – 28 Members.  In voting to abstain, the Liberal Democrat 
Group Members abstained on paragraphs (e), (g) and (h) in Part 1, plus Part 8 of 
the amendment; but voted for paragraphs (f) and (i) in Part 1 and Parts 4, 5 and 
6 of the amendment; and voted against paragraphs (c) and (d) in Part 1 and 
Parts 2, 3 and 7 of the amendment. The Green Group Members voted for, but 
against paragraphs (e) and (h) in Part 1 of the amendment.)  

Page 53



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 20 of 44 
 

    
5.5 The amendment moved by Councillor Andrew Sangar was then put to the vote 

and was lost. 
    
5.5.1 (NOTE: The result of the vote was FOR - 28 Members; AGAINST - 45 Members; 

ABSTENTIONS – 0 Members.) 
    
5.6 The original Motion, as amended, was then put as a Substantive Motion in the 

following form and carried:- 
    
    
  RESOLVED: 
    
  That this Council believes:- 
    
  (a)      that, if Sheffield is to play its part in achieving the Paris Climate targets, 

meet its net zero target by 2030 and address the cost of living crisis, we 
need to reduce energy demand through energy efficiency measures such 
as retrofitting homes and other buildings; and to significantly raise the 
amount of energy we produce from renewable sources; 

    
  (b)      having more of our energy produced from renewable sources helps us 

control costs by having secure forms of energy generated locally; energy 
security means that the UK is less at the mercy of dubious and 
undemocratic regimes with poor human rights records that are often the 
suppliers of fossil fuels; 

    
  That this Council:- 
    
  (c)      believes that the Co-operative Party’s plan for community-owned energy, 

which sets out how the Government can scale up community-owned 
energy - including through establishing a new National Community 
Energy fund and developing a National Community Energy Strategy - 
would give local people control over renewable production and deliver 
energy sovereignty for our communities; 

    
  (d)      believes that, as part of the on-going development of the Ethical 

Procurement Policy and Community Wealth Building Charter, the Council 
must work to remove procurement barriers to producers selling their 
energy locally, and believes allowing councils to prioritise community-
owned projects in procurement and planning would level the playing-field 
between community-owned energy and privately-owned giants; 

    
  (e)      believes that the South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority’s Energy 

Strategy is right to set ambitions to double the number of community 
energy organisations in South Yorkshire by 2040, and produce 100kW of 
community energy per year by 2030; 

    
  (f)       believes that the Council must continue working alongside Sheffield MPs 

to put pressure on the Government to deliver the Local Electricity Bill, in 

Page 54



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 21 of 44 
 

order to deliver more clean, local energy that benefits local communities; 
    
  (g)      supports the £3.5m of capital investment put forward through the Labour 

Group’s budget amendment approved in March 2022 - to decarbonise 
community buildings, install renewable energy infrastructure, and enact 
energy efficiency measures – and believes this shows the Council’s 
ambition to deliver Clean Growth and to help Sheffield through the cost-
of-living crisis; 

    
  (h)      notes that Sheffield generates more renewable energy than other 

comparable cities, but has relatively low levels of solar, wind and 
hydroelectricity; and believes, therefore, this investment is key to creating 
jobs and reducing emissions from the Council’s 38,000 homes and 4,000 
land and property assets including community buildings; 

    
  (i)       notes that the Strategy and Resources Policy Committee recently 

approved £13.24 million to improve insulation on 117 ‘Airey’ properties 
and £10.42 million to install external wall and roof insulation to 255 
Council homes; and 

    
  That this Council resolves:- 
    
  (j)     to ask the Transport, Regeneration and Climate Policy Committee to 

consider:- 
  

(i)     conducting an audit of the potential for renewable energy 
installations and energy efficiency measures on all Council land 
and property, draw up a priority list for installations based on the 
most potential to save energy and generate clean energy, ensuring 
that this is considered as part of the on-going Community Asset 
Plan, and present it to the Committee within 6 months; 

  
(ii)     installing solar photovoltaics on all new build Council-owned 

buildings where technically feasible, recognising that integrated 
roof systems are cheaper to install than retrofitting solar systems 
after construction; 

  
(iii)    creating a Local Area Energy Plan for Sheffield that has the buy-

in of the wider community and lead a local area energy planning 
process that involves both the network operators and other key 
stakeholders, including developers, energy experts and community 
energy groups - with each Local Area Committee (LAC) involved 
and maximising the ‘tool kit for engagement’ in the development of 
Local Area Energy Plans; 

  
(iv)    investigating establishing strategic partnerships with 

renewable and energy efficiency installers to help ensure 
certainty on cost and delivery of measures and report back to the 
Committee within 6 months; 

  

Page 55



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 22 of 44 
 

(v)    encouraging the establishment of partnerships with local 
Community Renewables organisations to enable low cost/no cost 
installations funded through citizens’ investments; 

  
(vi)    maximising external funding to finance installations using 

Government, South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority and any 
ethical sources; 

  
(vii)   using funding available for solar installations from 

Cooperatives on Council buildings and encouraging take up of this 
funding by large commercial organisations; 

  
(viii)  working with the Strategy and Resources Policy Committee to 

address procurement barriers to support community energy 
installations on Council buildings through the development of 
Sheffield’s Ethical Procurement Policies and Community Wealth 
Building Charter; 

  
(ix)    encouraging wider community investment in local renewable 

energy projects through a range of measures including, but not 
limited to, Community Share Offers and Municipal Bonds; 

  
(x)    working alongside the Housing Policy Committee to develop a 

compelling offer for private householders and landlords to 
support the installation of solar photovoltaics and high cost energy 
efficiency measures; 

  
(xi)    encouraging best practice in Planning to support renewable 

energy installations by developers and to create a low carbon 
energy supply; 

  
(xii)   encouraging renewable and energy efficiency skills by 

establishing links and relationships between our partners in the 
Renewable Energy and Energy Efficiency sectors with appropriate 
local training and education providers; 

  
(xiii)  working alongside the Economic Development and Skills Policy 

Committee to ensure training opportunities and new skills are 
included in all projects and that contracts related to energy 
efficiency and renewables should include commitments from 
contractors on providing training opportunities and new skills for 
local people; and 

  
(xiv)  requiring new energy generation projects of 5MW or above to have 

at least 20% local ownership 
  

    
5.6.1 (NOTE: The result of the vote was FOR - 75 Members; AGAINST - 0 Members; 

ABSTENTIONS – 0 Members.  The Liberal Democrat Group Members voted for, 
but against paragraphs (c) and (d) and abstained on paragraphs (e), (g), (h) and 

Page 56



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 23 of 44 
 

(j) of the Substantive Motion.  The Green Group Members voted for, but against 
paragraphs (e) and (h) of the Substantive Motion.  Councillor Lewis Chinchen 
voted for, but abstained on sub-paragraph (j)(xiv) of the Substantive Motion.) 

  
 
6. 
 

NOTICE OF MOTION REGARDING "COMMITTING THE COUNCIL TO 
TACKLING THE STIGMA OF MENOPAUSE AND PERIOD POVERTY" - 
GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR JAYNE DUNN AND TO BE SECONDED BY 
COUNCILLOR JULIE GROCUTT 
 

6.1 It was moved by Councillor Jayne Dunn, and seconded by Councillor Julie 
Grocutt, that this Council:- 

    
  (a)      notes there are more than 13 million women currently experiencing 

menopause or perimenopause in the UK; and that menopause 
campaigners argue that medical sexism and a lack of training means 
many women are left to suffer the symptoms of menopause;  

    
  (b)      recognises that menopause is a society and family issue, not just a 

women’s issue; 
    
  (c)      notes that women over the age of 50 are the fastest growing segment of 

the workforce, and most will go through the menopause transition during 
their working lives, and many won’t be able to meet their full potential at 
work unless they get the right support from their employer; 

    
  (d)      believes the UK could be losing 14 million workdays a year related to the 

menopause, according to recent research by Censuswide, with one in 
four women who experience menopausal symptoms, many at the top of 
their career, considering leaving their job; 

    
  (e)      reaffirms the Council has a legal duty to ensure that employees do not 

face discrimination; 
    
  (f)       believes employers who support women through the menopause will reap 

the benefits in terms of increased engagement and loyalty, as well as 
lower sickness absence and employee turnover; 

    
  (g)      believes fostering age and gender inclusive workplaces can help the 

Council to tap into the valuable skills and talent this fast-growing segment 
of the workforce has to offer; 

    
  (h)      believes this is an important issue that the Council has a role in 

addressing and that its currently getting worse due to the cost-of-living 
crisis; 

    
  (i)       recognises that women are a significant element in the City’s economy 

and are vital to helping families through the cost-of-living crisis, but cannot 
if they are too ill to work; 

    

Page 57



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 24 of 44 
 

  (j)       notes removing barriers to progression for women could help the Council 
close its gender pay gap, and believes supporting women through 
menopause will help mitigate ageism in the workplace; 

    
  (k)      recognises the valuable contribution of Carolyn Harris MP (co-chair of the 

Menopause Task Force), the GMB, Unite, USDAW, Community Union 
and others who lead the way on this issue; 

    
  (l)       believes the Government is failing to ensure the country is period poverty 

free by 2025; 
    
  (m)     notes with alarm that amidst the worst cost of living crisis in 40 years, a 

poll of 1,000 UK girls aged 14-21 reveals over 1 in 4 are struggling to 
afford period products and nearly 1 in 5 report being unable to afford 
them; 

    
  (n)      believes, as a result, period poverty is a serious issue for women in the 

city which disproportionately affects groups who already face barriers 
accessing support, including ethnic minority groups, refugees and asylum 
seekers, people with disability, young carers and young people in care, 
creating indignity and a significant mental health burden through stigma; 

    
  (o)      recognises that period poverty goes hand in hand with food poverty and 

cuts across different policy areas, requiring a holistic, cross cutting 
commitment and intervention; 

    
  (p)      notes that the Labour Party’s work on religious and sex education in 

schools has moved us further along in terms of awareness, but proposes 
more needs to be done; and 

    
  (q)      calls on the Chief Executive to report to the Strategy and Resources 

Policy Committee, within the next three months, on plans to incorporate 
the GMB Menopause Smash the Stigma Workplace Policy, including the 
following:- 

    
  (i)       preventing women being disadvantaged at work because of their 

symptoms and because of the stigma of discussing menopause at 
work; 

    
  (ii)       adopting a supportive workplace model which includes manager 

and staff training on issues around menopause, including through 
the GMB, to all members of staff in work time over a 12-month 
period; 

    
  (iii)      adopting a more progressive and inclusive approach to supporting 

those who experience menopause; 
    
  (iv)      to make Sheffield a period aware city, looking at how period 

poverty, shame and inequality can be addressed across the 
Council’s areas of work and developing a "Period Equality Charter” 

Page 58



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 25 of 44 
 

outlining what this means for different policy areas; 
    
  (v)      looking at period poverty as part of the cost-of-living crisis, 

exploring ways to supply free period products, calling on schools to 
join the Government’s free period products scheme and promote 
the scheme to pupils; 

    
  (vi)      exploring what efforts the Council may be able to undertake to 

support and coordinate existing efforts and donations of period 
products to increase their impact and integrating efforts into the 
cost of living response; 

    
  (vii)     calling on the Government to fund provision of free period products 

in all public buildings; 
    
  (viii)    consider adopting a relevant HR policy as a council, e.g. menstrual 

leave policy, and to encourage other local businesses and 
organisations to make the same commitments; and 

    
  (ix)      ensuring that at future corporate-level collective bargaining 

negotiations, provisions are made to accept and integrate the 
recommendations of the GMB Smash the Stigma Workplace Policy 
into Council policy and procedures.  

    
6.2 Whereupon, it was moved by Councillor Marieanne Elliot, and seconded by 

Councillor Maroof Raouf, as an amendment, that the Motion now submitted be 
amended by:- 

    
  1.       the addition of new paragraphs (q) to (u) as follows, and the re-lettering of 

original paragraph (q) as a new paragraph (v):- 
    
  (q)      notes that period poverty is a particular problem in the asylum 

system, for those who receive under £40 a week in state support 
(Bloody Good Period/Women for Refugee Women, 2019); 

    
  (r)       notes that under the Period Products (Free Provision) Scotland Bill, 

the Scottish Government has set up a Scotland-wide scheme to 
allow anyone who needs period products to get them free of 
charge, and gives the Scottish Government the power to make 
public bodies including schools, colleges and universities, provide 
period products for free (Scottish Parliament, 2021); 

    
  (s)      notes that as part of the Welsh Government’s Period Dignity 

Strategic Action Plan, funding has been provided to local 
authorities and Further Education institutions to ensure that period 
products can be accessed free of charge by learners in schools, 
Further Education institutions and to those in need in communities 
(Welsh Government, 2021); 

    
  (t)       believes that everyone who requires period products should be 

Page 59



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 26 of 44 
 

able to access them for free; 
    
  (u)      believes that a person’s period should not prevent them from 

succeeding in life; 
    
  2.       the addition of a new paragraph (w) as follows:-  
    
  (w)      also calls on the Chief Executive to report to the Strategy and 

Resources Policy Committee, within the next three months, to:- 
    
  (i)       examine the feasibility of providing free period products in 

public toilets and other public buildings, including the Town 
Hall and community centres, including exploring whether 
any free disposable or reusable period products provided by 
the Council can be sustainably sourced; 

    
  (ii)       publicise the provision of free period products and reusable 

period products, such as moon cups, through Council 
communication channels; and 

    
  (iii)      write to the Minister for Women and Equalities, calling on 

the UK government to make period products free and 
available to all who need them across England, as has been 
done in Scotland and Wales. 

    
6.3 After contributions from four other Members, and following a right of reply from 

Councillor Jayne Dunn, the amendment moved by Councillor Marieanne Elliot 
was put to the vote and was carried unanimously. 

    
6.4 The original Motion, as amended, was then put as a Substantive Motion in the 

following form and carried unanimously:- 
    
    
  RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That this Council:- 
    
  (a)      notes there are more than 13 million women currently experiencing 

menopause or perimenopause in the UK; and that menopause 
campaigners argue that medical sexism and a lack of training means 
many women are left to suffer the symptoms of menopause; 

    
  (b)      recognises that menopause is a society and family issue, not just a 

women’s issue; 
    
  (c)      notes that women over the age of 50 are the fastest growing segment of 

the workforce, and most will go through the menopause transition during 
their working lives, and many won’t be able to meet their full potential at 
work unless they get the right support from their employer; 

    
  (d)      believes the UK could be losing 14 million workdays a year related to the 

menopause, according to recent research by Censuswide, with one in 

Page 60



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 27 of 44 
 

four women who experience menopausal symptoms, many at the top of 
their career, considering leaving their job; 

    
  (e)      reaffirms the Council has a legal duty to ensure that employees do not 

face discrimination; 
    
  (f)       believes employers who support women through the menopause will reap 

the benefits in terms of increased engagement and loyalty, as well as 
lower sickness absence and employee turnover; 

    
  (g)      believes fostering age and gender inclusive workplaces can help the 

Council to tap into the valuable skills and talent this fast-growing segment 
of the workforce has to offer; 

    
  (h)      believes this is an important issue that the Council has a role in 

addressing and that its currently getting worse due to the cost-of-living 
crisis; 

    
  (i)       recognises that women are a significant element in the City’s economy 

and are vital to helping families through the cost-of-living crisis, but cannot 
if they are too ill to work; 

    
  (j)       notes removing barriers to progression for women could help the Council 

close its gender pay gap, and believes supporting women through 
menopause will help mitigate ageism in the workplace; 

    
  (k)      recognises the valuable contribution of Carolyn Harris MP (co-chair of the 

Menopause Task Force), the GMB, Unite, USDAW, Community Union 
and others who lead the way on this issue; 

    
  (l)       believes the Government is failing to ensure the country is period poverty 

free by 2025; 
    
  (m)     notes with alarm that amidst the worst cost of living crisis in 40 years, a 

poll of 1,000 UK girls aged 14-21 reveals over 1 in 4 are struggling to 
afford period products and nearly 1 in 5 report being unable to afford 
them; 

    
  (n)      believes, as a result, period poverty is a serious issue for women in the 

city which disproportionately affects groups who already face barriers 
accessing support, including ethnic minority groups, refugees and asylum 
seekers, people with disability, young carers and young people in care, 
creating indignity and a significant mental health burden through stigma; 

    
  (o)      recognises that period poverty goes hand in hand with food poverty and 

cuts across different policy areas, requiring a holistic, cross cutting 
commitment and intervention; 

    
  (p)      notes that the Labour Party’s work on religious and sex education in 

schools has moved us further along in terms of awareness, but proposes 

Page 61



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 28 of 44 
 

more needs to be done; 
    
  (q)      notes that period poverty is a particular problem in the asylum system, for 

those who receive under £40 a week in state support (Bloody Good 
Period/Women for Refugee Women, 2019); 

    
  (r)       notes that under the Period Products (Free Provision) Scotland Bill, the 

Scottish Government has set up a Scotland-wide scheme to allow anyone 
who needs period products to get them free of charge, and gives the 
Scottish Government the power to make public bodies including schools, 
colleges and universities, provide period products for free (Scottish 
Parliament, 2021); 

    
  (s)      notes that as part of the Welsh Government’s Period Dignity Strategic 

Action Plan, funding has been provided to local authorities and Further 
Education institutions to ensure that period products can be accessed 
free of charge by learners in schools, Further Education institutions and to 
those in need in communities (Welsh Government, 2021); 

    
  (t)       believes that everyone who requires period products should be able to 

access them for free; 
    
  (u)      believes that a person’s period should not prevent them from succeeding 

in life; 
    
  (v)      calls on the Chief Executive to report to the Strategy and Resources 

Policy Committee, within the next three months, on plans to incorporate 
the GMB Menopause Smash the Stigma Workplace Policy, including the 
following:- 

  
(i)     preventing women being disadvantaged at work because of their 

symptoms and because of the stigma of discussing menopause at 
work; 

  
(ii)     adopting a supportive workplace model which includes manager 

and staff training on issues around menopause, including through 
the GMB, to all members of staff in work time over a 12-month 
period; 

  
(iii)    adopting a more progressive and inclusive approach to supporting 

those who experience menopause; 
  

(iv)    to make Sheffield a period aware city, looking at how period poverty, 
shame and inequality can be addressed across the Council’s areas 
of work and developing a "Period Equality Charter” outlining what 
this means for different policy areas; 

  
(v)    looking at period poverty as part of the cost-of-living crisis, exploring 

ways to supply free period products, calling on schools to join the 
Government’s free period products scheme and promote the 

Page 62



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 29 of 44 
 

scheme to pupils; 
  

(vi)    exploring what efforts the Council may be able to undertake to 
support and coordinate existing efforts and donations of period 
products to increase their impact and integrating efforts into the cost 
of living response; 

  
(vii)   calling on the Government to fund provision of free period products 

in all public buildings; 
  

(viii)  consider adopting a relevant HR policy as a council, e.g. menstrual 
leave policy, and to encourage other local businesses and 
organisations to make the same commitments; and 

  
(ix)    ensuring that at future corporate-level collective bargaining 

negotiations, provisions are made to accept and integrate the 
recommendations of the GMB Smash the Stigma Workplace Policy 
into Council policy and procedures; and 

    
  (w)      also calls on the Chief Executive to report to the Strategy and Resources 

Policy Committee, within the next three months, to:- 
  

(i)     examine the feasibility of providing free period products in public 
toilets and other public buildings, including the Town Hall and 
community centres, including exploring whether any free disposable 
or reusable period products provided by the Council can be 
sustainably sourced; 

  
(ii)     publicise the provision of free period products and reusable period 

products, such as moon cups, through Council communication 
channels; and 

  
(iii)    write to the Minister for Women and Equalities, calling on the UK 

government to make period products free and available to all who 
need them across England, as has been done in Scotland and 
Wales. 

    
  
 
7. 
 

NOTICE OF MOTION REGARDING "BEST VALUE SERVICES FOR THE 
PEOPLE OF SHEFFIELD" - GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR MIKE LEVERY AND TO 
BE SECONDED BY COUNCILLOR JOE OTTEN 
 

7.1 It was formally moved by Councillor Mike Levery, and formally seconded by 
Councillor Joe Otten, that this Council:- 

    
  (a)      believes that it is this Council’s duty to seek best value for the people of 

Sheffield, especially given the current financial challenges faced by the 
Council; 

    

Page 63



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 30 of 44 
 

  (b)      believes the people of Sheffield want to see services delivered efficiently 
and effectively both in performance and price; 

    
  (c)      notes that a Labour Government introduced Best Value in the Local 

Government Act of 1999 stating it was to “make arrangements to secure 
continuous improvement in the way an authority exercises its functions, 
having regard to a combination of factors, including economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness”; 

    
  (d)      believes that the principles set out in the Local Government Act of 1999 

could have been better fulfilled by this Council in a number of 
circumstances, for example:- 

    
  (i)       the Housing Repairs Service, where there have been dramatic 

increases in the waiting list for repairs over the last few years, 
increasing to over 5,000 currently, with an average waiting time of 
over 21 days; 

    
  (ii)       the average amount of time houses are left empty for, after 

residents move out, in recent years has increased to 12 weeks, far 
above the target of six weeks; and 

    
  (iii)      youth services which has failed to deliver as the people of Sheffield 

would want and need, despite additional funding of £2m in both 
2020/21 and 2021/22, none of which was spent on youth service 
delivery; 

    
  (e)      notes that despite the Children, Young People and Families Scrutiny and 

Policy Development Committee twice recommending the decision on 
youth services to be revisited in 2020, the second time unanimously, 
Cabinet, on further consideration, progressed the decision; 

    
  (f)       believes that for decisions to progress with service changes that involve 

staff transfers, much more consideration needs to be given to the impact 
for the workforce and employer arising from the transfer of employment; 

    
  (g)      believes that Policy Committees are best placed to determine which of 

their areas should be prioritised to demand continuous improvement in 
both delivery and financial performance; and 

    
  (h)      therefore believes that this Council should look to implement the 

following:- 
    
  (i)       examine where other councils have adopted different models for 

service provision and look at comparative performance; 
    
  (ii)       establishment of internal service providers with the relevant council 

function being the budget holders; 
    
  (iii)      benchmarking of services with other providers, no matter which 

Page 64



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 31 of 44 
 

area they operate in; and 
    
  (iv)      clear, unambiguous performance measures which demonstrate 

ongoing improvement in service delivery. 
    
7.2 Whereupon, it was formally moved by Councillor Fran Belbin, and formally 

seconded by Councillor Zahira Naz, as an amendment, that the Motion now 
submitted be amended by:- 

    
  1.       the deletion of paragraphs (d) to (f);  
    
  2.       the addition of new paragraphs (d) and (e) as follows:- 
    
  (d)      notes that to achieve best value, in common with many other local 

authorities, Sheffield City Council (SCC) has considered in-
sourcing services where external providers were not delivering 
effectively in recent years and has in-sourced housing repairs and 
youth services; 

    
  (e)      believes that while in-sourcing requires a process of continuous 

improvement and is not an end in itself, the Council is better able to 
manage and monitor performance and deliver improvement in the 
services that have been in-sourced, and, by way of example:- 

    
  (i)       notes the housing repairs service, while affected by 

difficulties including Covid-19, rising costs and skill 
shortages, is making headway in reducing the repairs 
backlog and the management of vacant properties, and new 
in-house, online reporting systems will accelerate this 
improvement; 

    
  (ii)       further integration of the housing repairs service with SCC’s 

Housing function should result in an improved customer 
experience for Council tenants; 

    
  (iii)      in-sourced Youth Services are reducing management costs 

and redesigning the service to focus on frontline delivery of 
universal youth and play services in communities across the 
city, involving the training and development of new youth 
and play workers, professions that have been devastated by 
years of austerity that began in 2010 with the coalition 
government;  

    
  (iv)      notes that since the youth services contract  was not 

renewed in October 2020, and the service came back to the 
Council, there have been significant improvements to youth 
services; however, this must be put in the context that the 
service was brought back in the middle of the Covid 
Pandemic and, therefore, was unable to spend all of the £2 
million on youth service provision (noting that the National 

Page 65



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 32 of 44 
 

Youth Agency only gave Green COVID guidance in July 
2021, meaning activities could only return to normal 
following over a year of closure), and notes that the money 
was therefore spent on laptops for school children who 
required them to access education, and believes this was 
essential for those most at risk of safeguarding concerns / 
isolation; 

    
  (v)      notes the expanded youth service sessions, ensuring that at 

least one session of youth work, either in a club or 
detached, is being delivered in every ward - achieved 
against a backdrop of Sheffield not having an active Youth 
Workforce due to a decade of financial cuts nationally to 
youth services; 

    
  (vi)      notes that the Council is now ready to give grants to VCF 

partners across the city to deliver in partnership with the 
Council, ensuring that by the end of the financial year there 
will be a minimum of 3 sessions in every ward across the 
city; 

    
  (vii)     notes that capturing what young people and local 

communities are telling us they want and need is at the 
heart of the changes; and  

    
  (viii)    notes that staff brought in-house to the Council generally 

enjoy favourable terms and conditions, employee support 
schemes, and with investment in resources, training and 
youth buildings, staff will have an improved working 
environment from which to deliver modern, contemporary 
youth services that are inclusive and meet the needs and 
aspirations of young people;   

    
  3.       the re-lettering of original paragraphs (g) and (h) as new paragraphs (f) 

and (g). 
    
7.2.1 (NOTE: With the agreement of the Council and at the request of the mover of the 

amendment (Councillor Fran Belbin), the amendment as circulated at the 
meeting and published with the agenda was altered by the insertion of the word 
“generally”, between the words “Council” and “enjoy”, in the first line of sub-
paragraph (e)(viii) within Part 2 of the amendment.) 

    
7.3 It was then formally moved by Councillor Douglas Johnson, and formally 

seconded by Councillor Alexi Dimond, as an amendment, that the Motion now 
submitted be amended by:- 

    
  1.       the deletion of paragraph (b) and the addition of a new paragraph (b) as 

follows:- 
    
  (b)      believes the people of Sheffield want to see services delivered 

Page 66



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 33 of 44 
 

efficiently, effectively, responsibly, equitably and ethically; 
    
  2.       the addition of the following words at the end of paragraph (c) - 
    
            “; further notes that the world has moved on since 1999, and whilst it is still 

important to have “regard to a combination of factors, including economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness”, believes that equity, the environment and 
social implications must also be factored into every local government 
decision” 

    
  3.       the addition of a new sub-paragraph (d)(iii) as follows, and the re-lettering 

of original sub-paragraph (d)(iii) as a new sub-paragraph (d)(iv):- 
    
  (d)(iii)  Council transport policy, which is believed has consistently 

prioritised the perceived needs of motorists, to the detriment of the 
Council’s budget pressures, road safety, air pollution, transport 
investment, equality and the climate emergency;  

    
  4.       the addition of a new sub-paragraph (h)(v) as follows:- 
    
  (h)(v)  examine where other councils have improved outcomes in terms of 

reliability and affordability of public transport, reduced emissions, 
improved road safety and increased participation in active travel 
through better enforcement of motor vehicle offences, increased 
coverage and fees for permit parking, Workplace Parking Levies 
and Clean Air/Ultra Low Emission Zones. 

    
7.4 The amendment moved by Councillor Fran Belbin was put to the vote and was 

carried in part.  Parts 1 and 3 of the amendment were lost and Part 2 of the 
amendment was carried. 

    
7.4.1 (NOTE: The result of the vote was FOR - 46 Members; AGAINST - 28 Members; 

ABSTENTIONS – 0 Members.  The Green Group Members voted for, but 
against Part 1 of the amendment.) 

    
7.5 The amendment moved by Councillor Douglas Johnson was then put to the vote 

and was carried in part.  Parts 1 and 2 of the amendment were carried and Parts 
3 and 4 of the amendment were lost. 

    
7.5.1 (NOTE: The result of the vote was FOR - 45 Members; AGAINST - 28 Members; 

ABSTENTIONS – 0 Members.  The Labour Group Members voted for, but 
against Parts 3 and 4 of the amendment.  Councillor Sophie Wilson voted for, 
but against Part 4 of the amendment.) 

    
7.6 The original Motion, as amended, was then put as a Substantive Motion in the 

following form and carried:- 
    
    
  RESOLVED:  That this Council:- 
    

Page 67



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 34 of 44 
 

  (a)      believes that it is this Council’s duty to seek best value for the people of 
Sheffield, especially given the current financial challenges faced by the 
Council; 

    
  (b)      believes the people of Sheffield want to see services delivered efficiently, 

effectively, responsibly, equitably and ethically; 
    
  (c)      notes that a Labour Government introduced Best Value in the Local 

Government Act of 1999 stating it was to “make arrangements to secure 
continuous improvement in the way an authority exercises its functions, 
having regard to a combination of factors, including economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness”; further notes that the world has moved on since 1999, 
and whilst it is still important to have “regard to a combination of factors, 
including economy, efficiency and effectiveness”, believes that equity, the 
environment and social implications must also be factored into every local 
government decision; 

    
  (d)      believes that the principles set out in the Local Government Act of 1999 

could have been better fulfilled by this Council in a number of 
circumstances, for example:- 

  
(i)     the Housing Repairs Service, where there have been dramatic 

increases in the waiting list for repairs over the last few years, 
increasing to over 5,000 currently, with an average waiting time of 
over 21 days; 

  
(ii)     the average amount of time houses are left empty for, after 

residents move out, in recent years has increased to 12 weeks, far 
above the target of six weeks; and 

  
(iii)    youth services which has failed to deliver as the people of Sheffield 

would want and need, despite additional funding of £2m in both 
2020/21 and 2021/22, none of which was spent on youth service 
delivery; 

    
  (e)      notes that despite the Children, Young People and Families Scrutiny and 

Policy Development Committee twice recommending the decision on 
youth services to be revisited in 2020, the second time unanimously, 
Cabinet, on further consideration, progressed the decision; 

    
  (f)       notes that to achieve best value, in common with many other local 

authorities, Sheffield City Council (SCC) has considered in-sourcing 
services where external providers were not delivering effectively in recent 
years and has in-sourced housing repairs and youth services; 

    
  (g)      believes that while in-sourcing requires a process of continuous 

improvement and is not an end in itself, the Council is better able to 
manage and monitor performance and deliver improvement in the 
services that have been in-sourced, and, by way of example:- 

  

Page 68



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 35 of 44 
 

(i)     notes the housing repairs service, while affected by difficulties 
including Covid-19, rising costs and skill shortages, is making 
headway in reducing the repairs backlog and the management of 
vacant properties, and new in-house, online reporting systems will 
accelerate this improvement; 

  
(ii)     further integration of the housing repairs service with SCC’s 

Housing function should result in an improved customer experience 
for Council tenants; 

  
(iii)    in-sourced Youth Services are reducing management costs and 

redesigning the service to focus on frontline delivery of universal 
youth and play services in communities across the city, involving the 
training and development of new youth and play workers, 
professions that have been devastated by years of austerity that 
began in 2010 with the coalition government; 

  
(iv)    notes that since the youth services contract  was not renewed in 

October 2020, and the service came back to the Council, there have 
been significant improvements to youth services; however, this must 
be put in the context that the service was brought back in the middle 
of the Covid Pandemic and, therefore, was unable to spend all of the 
£2 million on youth service provision (noting that the National Youth 
Agency only gave Green COVID guidance in July 2021, meaning 
activities could only return to normal following over a year of 
closure), and notes that the money was therefore spent on laptops 
for school children who required them to access education, and 
believes this was essential for those most at risk of safeguarding 
concerns / isolation; 

  
(v)    notes the expanded youth service sessions, ensuring that at least 

one session of youth work, either in a club or detached, is being 
delivered in every ward - achieved against a backdrop of Sheffield 
not having an active Youth Workforce due to a decade of financial 
cuts nationally to youth services; 

  
(vi)    notes that the Council is now ready to give grants to VCF partners 

across the city to deliver in partnership with the Council, ensuring 
that by the end of the financial year there will be a minimum of 3 
sessions in every ward across the city; 

  
(vii)   notes that capturing what young people and local communities are 

telling us they want and need is at the heart of the changes; and 
  

(viii)  notes that staff brought in-house to the Council generally enjoy 
favourable terms and conditions, employee support schemes, and 
with investment in resources, training and youth buildings, staff will 
have an improved working environment from which to deliver 
modern, contemporary youth services that are inclusive and meet 
the needs and aspirations of young people; 

Page 69



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 36 of 44 
 

    
  (h)      believes that for decisions to progress with service changes that involve 

staff transfers, much more consideration needs to be given to the impact 
for the workforce and employer arising from the transfer of employment; 

    
  (i)       believes that Policy Committees are best placed to determine which of 

their areas should be prioritised to demand continuous improvement in 
both delivery and financial performance; and 

    
  (j)       therefore believes that this Council should look to implement the 

following:- 
  

(i)     examine where other councils have adopted different models for 
service provision and look at comparative performance; 

  
(ii)     establishment of internal service providers with the relevant council 

function being the budget holders; 
  

(iii)    benchmarking of services with other providers, no matter which area 
they operate in; and 

  
(iv)    clear, unambiguous performance measures which demonstrate 

ongoing improvement in service delivery. 
    
    
7.6.1 (NOTE: The result of the vote was FOR - 73 Members; AGAINST - 0 Members; 

ABSTENTIONS – 0 Members.  The Labour Group Members voted for, but 
against paragraphs (d), (e), (h) and (j)(ii) of the Substantive Motion.  The Liberal 
Democrat Group Members voted for, but against paragraphs (f) and (g) of the 
Substantive Motion.  Councillor Lewis Chinchen voted for, but abstained on 
paragraphs (f) and (g) of the Substantive Motion.  Councillor Sophie Wilson 
voted for, but against sub-paragraphs (j)(i) and (ii) of the Substantive Motion.) 

  
 
8. 
 

NOTICE OF MOTION REGARDING "COST OF LIVING CRISIS - NATIONAL 
FAILINGS AND OUR LOCAL RESPONSE" - GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR 
NABEELA MOWLANA AND TO BE SECONDED BY COUNCILLOR ABTISAM 
MOHAMED 
 

8.1 It was formally moved by Councillor Nabeela Mowlana, and formally seconded 
by Councillor Zahira Naz, that this Council:- 

    
  (a)      notes that inflation is at over 10%, with Britain the only G7 economy where 

inflation has hit double digits; 
    
  (b)      believes that the Government’s reckless mini-budget has crashed the 

economy, and though the Prime Minister and Chancellor may have again 
changed, the damage has already been dealt; 

    
  (c)      notes that the unfunded tax cuts caused financial disaster – with spiralling 

Page 70



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 37 of 44 
 

interest on government bonds, and crashing the pound to its weakest ever 
position against the dollar; 

    
  (d)      notes that the effect of this has been soaring mortgage repayment costs, 

higher inflation and widespread economic turmoil, further compounding 
the current cost-of-living crisis; 

    
  (e)      notes that in response to the crisis of their own making, the Government 

have now reneged on plans to provide a two-year cap on the cost of 
energy units, and have slashed this guaranteed support to 6 months 
instead; 

    
  (f)       believes that as this Government attempt to balance the country’s 

finances following their complete and utter mismanagement of the 
economy, the burden for this must not fall on Sheffield residents or cash-
strapped public services; 

    
  (g)      notes that the Council is already facing its worse ever budget position – 

caused by inflation, unprecedented energy costs and twelve preceding 
years of government cuts, meaning that there is now very little flexibility 
for the Council to make additional savings; 

    
  (h)      notes that Sheffield Council will have lost around £300 million from its 

budget, in real terms, since 2010 – around a third of the Council’s entire 
budget – making it even harder for the organisation to support the city’s 
residents during the cost-of-living crisis; 

    
  (i)       notes, however, that despite the financial difficulties, this Council is doing 

everything it can to support residents through this crisis, with the Council 
creating a package of support to provide all available guidance (financial, 
fuel, food) for anyone facing hardship; 

    
  (j)       notes that alongside partners in Voluntary Action Sheffield and numerous 

VCFS organisations, the Council has created a network of ‘Welcome 
Places’ which will provide convenient spaces for people to access help or 
just call in to get warm, have a cup of tea and a chat, in their local 
communities; 

    
  (k)      believes that Sheffield’s warm and welcoming places should harness 

everything great about the support that exists in the city, providing places 
for people to socialise, undertake activities, share advice, learn and 
support each other; 

    
  (l)       notes that the Council has formed a cost-of-living steering group, chaired 

by the Council Leader, and believes that as an organisation we must work 
on the crisis with the same resolve and collective spirit as was needed 
throughout the pandemic; 

    
  (m)     supports the Labour Party’s plan to take real action now to tackle the 

Government’s cost of living crisis:- 

Page 71



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 38 of 44 
 

    
  (i)       cut VAT on home energy bills; 
    
  (ii)       save on energy bills now and in the longer term by insulating 

millions of homes; 
    
  (iii)      cut small business rates and support businesses through the cost 

of living storm; 
    
  (iv)      buy, make and sell more in Britain to create well-paid, secure jobs 

in every community; and 
    
  (v)      establish a state-owned energy company – Great British Energy – 

charged with investing in and running green energy projects across 
the country, leading to clean growth and lower energy bills; 

    
  (n)      calls on the Government to finally provide sufficient financial support for 

households, businesses and local authorities to ensure that people in 
Sheffield get the support they need through this ongoing crisis that this 
Council believes is of their making; and 

    
  (o)      believes that whilst the Government is not providing any funding to do 

what is really needed to support people fully, or to provide the public 
services we should expect, it is important that the Council helps to lead 
the co-ordinated efforts across the city to support residents through this 
ongoing crisis.  

    
8.2 Whereupon, it was formally moved by Councillor Joe Otten, and formally 

seconded by Councillor Simon Clement-Jones, as an amendment, that the 
Motion now submitted be amended by:- 

    
  1.       the addition of new paragraphs (j) and (k) as follows, and the re-lettering of 

original paragraphs (j) to (l) as new paragraphs (l) to (n):-  
    
  (j)       regrets the inclusion of £12m worth of Budget Implementation 

Plans that are now predicted to be undeliverable by 2023/24 within 
the current budget, and believes that it is of the utmost importance 
to improve this Council’s financial situation in order to safeguard 
the public services that Sheffield residents rely upon; 

    
  (k)      notes with concern the delays to this Council's insulation work 

programme on its own housing stock, which may cause our own 
tenants to suffer increased energy bills this year, and requests that 
the Strategy and Resources Policy Committee work to ensure this 
crucial insulation work is completed as quickly as possible; 

    
  2.       the deletion of original paragraph (m) and the addition of new paragraphs 

(o) and (p), as follows:- 
    
  (o)      calls on central government to tackle the cost of living crisis, which 

Page 72



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 39 of 44 
 

this Council believes is of their making, through:- 
    
  (i)       cutting the standard rate of VAT to 17.5%; 
    
  (ii)       restoring the Universal Credit supplement of £20; 
    
  (iii)      introducing Free School Meals for all families receiving 

Universal Credit, and providing food vouchers for these 
families over every school holiday, providing stability to 
stretched household budgets; 

    
  (iv)      introducing a home insulation fund to decrease heating bills 

and carbon emissions; and 
    
  (v)      funding these measures through a windfall tax on energy 

companies making record profits; 
    
  (p)      requests that the Chief Executive writes to the Secretary of State 

for Work and Pensions to express this Council's demands to 
restore the Universal Credit supplement of £20; and to the 
Chancellor to express this Council's demands to cut the standard 
rate of VAT to 17.5%; 

    
  3.        the re-lettering of original paragraphs (n) and (o) as new paragraphs (q) 

and (r). 
    
8.3 It was then formally moved by Councillor Paul Turpin, and formally seconded by 

Councillor Martin Phipps, as an amendment, that the Motion now submitted be 
amended by:- 

    
  1.       the addition of a new paragraph (e) as follows, and the re-lettering of the 

original paragraphs (e) to (g) as new paragraphs (f) to (h):- 
    
  (e)      rejects any return to discredited austerity policies by the 

Government under the guise of “tough choices”, believing that it is 
a self-defeating policy which does nothing to help the UK’s 
finances and serves only to redistribute wealth from the poor to the 
rich; 

    
  2.       the addition of a new paragraph (i) as follows, and the re-lettering of the 

original paragraph (h) as a new paragraph (j):- 
    
  (i)       notes the failure of successive governments over the last 30 years 

to tackle the climate emergency and believes that the society we 
would have built; with warmer, better insulated low energy homes, 
locally generated clean, green energy and more food produced in 
the UK, would have had a significant impact on reducing the cost of 
living crisis; 

    
  3.       the addition of a new paragraph (k) as follows, and the re-lettering of the 

Page 73



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 40 of 44 
 

original paragraphs (i) to (m) as new paragraphs (l) to (p):- 
    
  (k)      notes that the "exponential growth" model of what makes a 

successful economy ignores its impact on climate change and 
nature and will make social and economic problems more severe, 
both now and into the future, therefore believes we need to make 
the necessary changes now and strongly, to promote Sheffield as a 
resilient city. 

    
  4.       the insertion, in the new paragraph (o) [the original paragraph (l)], of the 

words “as successfully proposed in the Green Group motion on 1st June 
2022,” after the words “steering group”; 

    
  5.       the addition of a new paragraph (q) as follows, and the re-lettering of the 

original paragraphs (n) and (o) as new paragraphs (r) and (s):- 
    
  (q)      supports policies that:- 
    
  (i)       increase minimum wage to £15/hour, ensure public sector 

wages keep pace with inflation and start restoring real wage 
losses from years of austerity; 

    
  (ii)       restore the £20 uplift to Universal Credit and double it to £40 

per week; 
    
  (iii)      increase tax on the wealthiest 1% to tackle rising inequality 

and support those on lowest incomes; 
    
  (iv)      restore the cap on bankers’ bonuses; 
    
  (v)      restore the Energy Price Cap to the October 2021 level, 

saving many households more than £2,000/year, financed 
by a windfall tax on energy producers; 

    
  (vi)      back an Employers Workplace Parking Levy to fund 

sustainable transport improvements, ensuring more council 
funding can be allocated to stretched services; and 

    
  (vii)     re-nationalise the UK’s energy providers. 
    
8.4 The amendment moved by Councillor Joe Otten was put to the vote and was 

lost. 
    
8.4.1 (NOTE: The result of the vote was FOR - 28 Members; AGAINST - 45 Members; 

ABSTENTIONS – 1 Member.) 
    
8.5 The amendment moved by Councillor Paul Turpin was then put to the vote and 

was carried in part.  Part 1 and sub-paragraphs (q)(iv), (v) and (vii) of Part 5 of 
the amendment were carried, and Parts 2, 3, 4 and sub-paragraphs (q)(i), (ii), (iii) 
and (vi) of Part 5 of the amendment were lost.  

Page 74



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 41 of 44 
 

    
8.5.1 (NOTE: The result of the vote was FOR - 46 Members; AGAINST - 27 Members; 

ABSTENTIONS – 0 Members.  The Labour Group Members voted for, but 
against Parts 2, 3, 4 and sub-paragraph (q)(vi) of Part 5 of the amendment, and 
abstained on sub-paragraphs (q)(i) to (iii) of the amendment.  Councillor Sophie 
Wilson voted for, but against sub-paragraph (q)(vi) of Part 5 of the amendment.) 

    
8.6 The original Motion, as amended, was then put as a Substantive Motion in the 

following form and carried:- 
    
    
  RESOLVED: That this Council:- 
    
  (a)      notes that inflation is at over 10%, with Britain the only G7 economy 

where inflation has hit double digits; 
    
  (b)      believes that the Government’s reckless mini-budget has crashed the 

economy, and though the Prime Minister and Chancellor may have again 
changed, the damage has already been dealt; 

    
  (c)      notes that the unfunded tax cuts caused financial disaster – with spiralling 

interest on government bonds, and crashing the pound to its weakest 
ever position against the dollar; 

    
  (d)      notes that the effect of this has been soaring mortgage repayment costs, 

higher inflation and widespread economic turmoil, further compounding 
the current cost-of-living crisis; 

    
  (e)      rejects any return to discredited austerity policies by the Government 

under the guise of “tough choices”, believing that it is a self-defeating 
policy which does nothing to help the UK’s finances and serves only to 
redistribute wealth from the poor to the rich; 

    
  (f)       notes that in response to the crisis of their own making, the Government 

have now reneged on plans to provide a two-year cap on the cost of 
energy units, and have slashed this guaranteed support to 6 months 
instead; 

    
  (g)      believes that as this Government attempt to balance the country’s 

finances following their complete and utter mismanagement of the 
economy, the burden for this must not fall on Sheffield residents or cash-
strapped public services; 

    
  (h)      notes that the Council is already facing its worse ever budget position – 

caused by inflation, unprecedented energy costs and twelve preceding 
years of government cuts, meaning that there is now very little flexibility 
for the Council to make additional savings; 

    
  (i)       notes that Sheffield Council will have lost around £300 million from its 

budget, in real terms, since 2010 – around a third of the Council’s entire 

Page 75



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 42 of 44 
 

budget – making it even harder for the organisation to support the city’s 
residents during the cost-of-living crisis; 

    
  (j)       notes, however, that despite the financial difficulties, this Council is doing 

everything it can to support residents through this crisis, with the Council 
creating a package of support to provide all available guidance (financial, 
fuel, food) for anyone facing hardship; 

    
  (k)      notes that alongside partners in Voluntary Action Sheffield and numerous 

VCFS organisations, the Council has created a network of ‘Welcome 
Places’ which will provide convenient spaces for people to access help or 
just call in to get warm, have a cup of tea and a chat, in their local 
communities; 

    
  (l)       believes that Sheffield’s warm and welcoming places should harness 

everything great about the support that exists in the city, providing places 
for people to socialise, undertake activities, share advice, learn and 
support each other; 

    
  (m)     notes that the Council has formed a cost-of-living steering group, chaired 

by the Council Leader, and believes that as an organisation we must work 
on the crisis with the same resolve and collective spirit as was needed 
throughout the pandemic; 

    
  (n)      supports the Labour Party’s plan to take real action now to tackle the 

Government’s cost of living crisis:- 
  

(i)     cut VAT on home energy bills; 
  

(ii)     save on energy bills now and in the longer term by insulating 
millions of homes; 

  
(iii)    cut small business rates and support businesses through the cost of 

living storm; 
  

(iv)    buy, make and sell more in Britain to create well-paid, secure jobs in 
every community; and 

  
(v)    establish a state-owned energy company – Great British Energy – 

charged with investing in and running green energy projects across 
the country, leading to clean growth and lower energy bills; 

    
  (o)       supports policies that:- 

  
(i)     restore the cap on bankers’ bonuses; 

  
(ii)     restore the Energy Price Cap to the October 2021 level, saving 

many households more than £2,000/year, financed by a windfall tax 
on energy producers; and 

  

Page 76



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 43 of 44 
 

(iii)    re-nationalise the UK’s energy providers; 
    
  (p)      calls on the Government to finally provide sufficient financial support for 

households, businesses and local authorities to ensure that people in 
Sheffield get the support they need through this ongoing crisis that this 
Council believes is of their making; and 

    
  (q)      believes that whilst the Government is not providing any funding to do 

what is really needed to support people fully, or to provide the public 
services we should expect, it is important that the Council helps to lead 
the co-ordinated efforts across the city to support residents through this 
ongoing crisis. 

    
    
8.6.1 (NOTE: The result of the vote was FOR - 73 Members; AGAINST - 1 Member; 

ABSTENTIONS – 0 Members.  The Liberal Democrat Group Members voted for, 
but against paragraphs (e), (n) and (o) of the Substantive Motion.  Councillor 
Lewis Chinchen voted against, but voted for paragraphs (k) to (m) of the 
Substantive Motion.) 

  
 
9. 
 

REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES 
 

9.1 RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: On the motion formally moved by Councillor 
Dianne Hurst and formally seconded by Councillor Joe Otten, that this Council:- 

    
  (a)       approves the boundary changes to polling districts and proposed polling 

places outlined in the report of the Chief Executive; and 
    
  (b)       delegates authority to the Returning Officer to make amendments to 

polling places and stations where a change must be made during an 
election period. 

  
 
10. 
 

CHANGES TO THE CONSTITUTION 
 

10.1 RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: On the motion formally moved by Councillor 
George Lindars-Hammond and formally seconded by Councillor Angela 
Argenzio, that this Council approves the changes to the various Parts of the 
Constitution, as outlined in sections 3.1 to 3.4 of the report of the Director of 
Legal and Governance and as set out in appendices B to G. 

  
 
11. 
 

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING 
 

11.1 RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: On the motion formally moved by Councillor 
Dianne Hurst and formally seconded by Councillor Talib Hussain, that the 
minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 14th September 2022, be 
approved as a true and accurate record. 

  

Page 77



Council 2.11.2022 

Page 44 of 44 
 

 
12. 
 

MEMBERSHIPS OF COUNCIL BODIES AND REPRESENTATIVES TO SERVE 
ON OTHER BODIES 
 

12.1 RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: On the motion formally moved by Councillor 
Dianne Hurst and formally seconded by Councillor Joe Otten, that:- 

    
  (a) it be noted that, in accordance with the authority given by the City Council at 

its annual meeting held on 18th May 2022, the Monitoring Officer had authorised 
the following appointments, with effect from the dates shown:- 

    
  Governance Committee - Councillors Peter Garbutt, Sioned-Mair Richards, 

Andrew Sangar and Richard Williams appointed, 
with effect from 5th October 2022, as substitute 
members of the Committee, with each political 
group able to appoint up to two substitute 
members. 

        
  (b) approval be given to the following changes to the memberships of 

Committees, Boards, etc:- 
    
  Planning and Highways 

Committee 
- Councillor Safiya Saeed to fill a vacancy as a 

substitute member. 
    

 
  

  Licensing Committee - Councillor Sioned-Mair Richards to fill a vacancy. 
    

 
  

  Governance Committee - Councillors Dawn Dale and Douglas Johnson to 
fill vacancies as substitute members. 

    
 

  
  Corporate Joint 

Committee with Trade 
Unions 

- Councillor Mike Levery to replace Councillor 
Shaffaq Mohammed. 

  
 
 

Page 78


	Agenda
	3 Declarations of Interest
	10 Appointment to the Office of Senior Coroner South Yorkshire (West)
	4.  SUMMARY OF TERMS & CONDITIONS OF THE SENIOR CORONER

	11 Minutes Of Previous Council Meeting

